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STAFF INTERVIEW 

3 · Wednesday, November 5, 1975 

4 

5 House of Representatives 

Select Committee on Intelligenc 

7 Washington, D. C. 

8 The staff tnterview began at·2:00 o'clock p.m.,· in Room 

9 B-316: Rayr.urn House Office Building, 

10 Present: James Oliphant, John .Atkisson, and Richard 

11 Vermeire, Committee Counsel. 
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1 Mr. Field. bo you solemnly swear the testimony you 
•• 

~ 

2 are about to give to the House Select Committee on Intelligence 

3'. will be the truth, the whole truth, so help you God? 

4 Mr. Wannall. Yes. 

5 Mr. Ryan. Yes. · 
< 

6. Mr. Shackelford. Yes. 
\ 

7 TESTIMONY OF W.· RAYMOND WANNALL,ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, 

8 INTELLIGENCE DIVISION, FBI; DAVID RYAN, SUPERVISOR, 

9 INTELLIGENCE DIVISION, FBI,'AND ROBERT L. SHACKELF0RD, 

10 SECTION CHIEF, INTELLIGENCE DIViSION, FBI 

11 Mr. Field. Will you please state your names? 

12 Mr. WCJ,nna~l. vi. Raymond Wannall, Assistant Director, 

1'l .... Intelligence Division, FBI. 

14 Mr. Ryan. David Ryan, Supervisor, Intelligenc.e 

15 Division, FBI. 

16 Mr. S~hackel·ford, Robert L. Shackel.ford, Section 

17 Chief, Intelligence Division, FBI. 

18 Mr. Wannall. May I ask if this will be a ·classified 

19 hearing? 

20 Mr. Oliphant~ The information will be classified and 

21 will not be released publicly without a vote of the 

22 committee. 

23 The Bureau will have a chance to take a look at the 

24 testimony that comes in. If there is something that you 

25 
feel should be classified, not released, certainly you 
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wi.ll be gi ve1_1 an opportunity ·to make your feelings knm·m. 
I 

There is a procedure worked out where if there is 

severe breakdown in communications or at least on getting 

together on what is or what is not classified, that will be 

submitted all the way up to the President. 
c 

Mr. WannaJL Thank you. I appreciate that. 

Mr. Vermeire. I will start the questioning off. 

I will uddress my first questions ·to Mr. WannalL 

Mr. Wanna~ is there now or has there ever been any elec-

tronic surveillance of Congressmen? 

Mr. Wannall There has never, to my knowledge, been in 

the national security area, and that .is the area in which I 

do have knowledge, a wiretap of any Members of CongFess. 

Mr. Vermeire. More specifically, do you know of any time· 

there was any wiretap or microphonic surveillance or any 

electronic. surveillance in general ever targeted at a 

Congressman Cooley? 

Mr. Wannall I am aware of the fact that several years 

ago there was a microphone surveillance in a hotel room 

in New York City which was occupied, as I recall, by officials 

of a foreign government, or at least persons connected 

with a foreign government. Congressman Cooley called at 

that room and was overheard as a result of that microphone 

surveillance. 

Mr. Vermeire. Was this fact ever made known to 
ocld:32989693 Page 5 ___ -------------~~-~-~-~~-~---~-



1 • ··: the Director, who I believe was Mr. Hoover at the time? 

4 

I .. i. MJ;'. Wannall. Yes, it was. 
~ 

3 Mr. Vermeire. , It was made known to him? 

i) 
r 4 Mr. Wannall. Yes. 

5 Mr. Vermeire. By whom? · 

6· Mr. Wannall· Not by myself. I was not in a position 
l 

7 to do it. I recall seeing memoranda indicating Mr. Hoover 

8 was aware of it. I would only be speculati~g as to who 

9 might have sent the memorandum to him. I assume it would have 

10 gone through channels, through the Assistant Director, through 

11 the Assistant to the Director, the Associate Director, 

12 and Mr. Hoover. 

13 Mr. Vermeire. Did you have any conversations at any 
--

14 time with respect to this matter with Mr. William Sullivan, 

15 formerly with the FBI? 

16 Nr. Wannall. Mr. Sullivan was the Assistant Director 

17 at the time I think because this had to be sometime in the 

18 early '60s. He became Assistant Directo4 as I recall, 

19 about early 196~, so I would certainly have haa conversations 

20 with him about it. 

21 Nr. Vermeire. Do you recall any of the specifics 

22 of those conversations? 

23 Mr. Wannall. It is difficult to recall specifics. 

24 I am certain . that discussion was had as to the advisability 

25 of putting a microphon~ coverage on. I cannot recall whether 

------ ·· 
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t this 'Vlas in the nature of conversations or memoranda 

2 which were submitted by the section with which I was connected 

3 at the time. 

4 Mr. Vermeire. Do you recall a conversation more 

5 specii~cally to the effect that--to Mr. Sullivan--that you had 

6 advised Mr. Hoover incorrectly that no electronic surveillance 

was done on any Congressman and the name of Congressman 

8 Cooley came to your mind and you were concerned about Mr. 

9 Hoover not having correct information at his command? 

10 Do you recall any conversation to that effect? 

11 Mr. Wannall. Yes, I not only recall the conversation; 

12 if I'm not mistaken, sometime in the late '60s a memorandum 

13 was prepare~ or .Perhaps tw~ in connection with that. 

14 At the time there were charges, I think, being made by a 

15 Member of Congress regarding wire taps made extensively 

16 of members ·of Congress. Mr. Hoover made a statement to the 

17 effect there had never been any electronic surveillances, 

18 which is a broader term than wiretap. I recall~ not having 

19 called it to Mr. Hoover's attention. I didn't personally 

20 do that. I think I probably called it to Mr. Sullivan's 

21 attention at the time. 

22 Mr. Verrneire. Did you at any time ever call it to 

23 Mr • . Hoover's attention after talki~g to Mr. Sullivan? 

24 Mr. Wannall. Personally~ ~, sir. 

25 Mr. Vermeire. You say there was a memorandum. Did 
I 
i 
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1 th:e·memorandum you are speaking of refer specifically 

2 to your conversations with Mr. Sullivan in this respect 

3 or is the memorand~ referring to electronic surveillance 

4 of Congressmen in general? 

5 Mr. Wannall ~ '!'he memorandum I am referring to, and 

6 : I think there were two, I think I perhaps participated in 
\ 

7 preparing one and another was prepared by someone working under 

8 me.· 

9 It related to the fact that there hat been an overhearing 

to of Congressman Cooley as a result of a microphone surveillance. 

11 Just what triggered that, I cannot recall. I probably 

12. could if I could review my files and refresh.my recollection 

13 about it. 

14 Mr. Vermeire. That is all I have in that area. Do 

15 you want to ask any questions with regard to that? I 

16 can continue on another line of questioning unless you 

17 have something you want to ask him. 

18 _Mr. Oliphant. Not with regard to that specific area, 

19 no. 

20 Mr. Vermeire. This \¥ill again be directed to Mr. 

21 Wannalf. Mr._ WannalA is there now within the FB_I any 

. 22 

23 

24 

procedure for describing or delineating subversive organiza-

tions or what organizations may be termed subversive or 

is there any expertise, if you will, within the 

I 

I 
25 

FBI at this time for determining what particular organizations 

--- - ----· 
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1 or persons might be considered subversive? 

2 · M+. Wannall. We have guidelines in the form of manual 

3 sections. I think tpe sections have been made available to ·the 

4 committee staff, Section 87 of our Manual of Instructions, 

5 Section 122 of our Manual of Instructions. I think those 

6 guidelines are the basis on which determinations are made. 

7 If determinations are originated in the field with 

8 respect to an organization, for example, the field will 

9 submit what is called a charad~r~ization writeup. That must 

10 come into Headquarters. It must be approved for utilization 

11 in docum~nting an organization if it is referred to in 

12 a subsequent investigative· report. 

13 Mr. Vermeire. With what frequency are these evaluations 

14 updated? 
/ 

15. Mr. ~~annall They must be reviewed once a yearo 

16 The instructions are: If the structure and/or 

17 character, of the organization undergoes any significant 

18 changes in the interim, they must be updated at that time. 

19 Mr. Vermeire. What persons within the FBI would have 

20 charge of updating this? 

21 Whose responsibility would this be? 

22 Mr. ~~nna11{he responsibility originally rests 

23 on the field. However, each of the characterizations is 

24 reviewed at Headquarters and a tickler is maintained at 

25 
Headquarters to assur~ that at least once every year 

NW 55301 ocld:3298969~3~P~a~g~e~9~----~----~~~--
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1 a1;1 characterizations are approved and approval granted 

2 at Headquarte:cs o 

3 Mr. Venneire. What I was driving at is not the characteriza 

4 tions of whether X organization meets the criteria for a 

5 subversive organization; what I was aiming at is who at 

6.. Headquarters, if anyone, reviews more or less the principles 
\ 

7 or the ideology behind various theories of whether an 

8 organization is subversive or not. In other words, do you 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1.3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

55301 

still follow principles or theories as to whether an organiza-

tion is a subversive one which, say, were propounded back 

in 1940 or are you continually revising your own information 

in this area, your own education, if you will? 

Mr. WannaiL Well, our characterizations are not 
~rip .. r. (t:,. 

based on any ideology or philosophy • . ·I.t-.:±:s' based on· the nature 

of the activities in which the members are engaged. 

Our characterizations,therefore,are based upon 

investigative results as opposed to ideologies. 

Mr. Vermeire. What kind of activities, for example, 

would fit that criteria? 

Mr. WannaiL You always have a judgment situation. 

I can give you some theoretical ideas. If we should be 

investigating an organization and det~rmine that it is 

stockpiling weapons and at the same !ime it is advocating 

overthrow by vio~ence of the government, the advocacy would 

only be relative insofar as bearing upon the activities. 

cld:32989693 Page 10 
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e •· Stockpiling weapons is indicative in my mind of an 

activity ~n the part of a group leading toward at~aining a 

pronounced objective. 
< 

Mr. Atkisson·. May I interject a question? Are you 

sayin1 that advocacy alone of anything is not sufficient 

grounds for ciassifying a group as subversive? 
~ 

Mr. Wannall. I am saying that without reservation. 

Mr. Ryan. Could I add to Mr. Wannall's comment? 

A very i~portant consideration is evidence of foreign 

. influence or control or funding. 

9 

Mr. Vermeire. The committee is very concerned with the 

FBI's classification of various things having to do with 

. 
national security. Y.7hat would your definition of a national 

security interest be? 

Mr. Wannall. The definition of national securi~y to 

my knowledge has never been put down anywhere so I can only 

give you my concept within the framework you are speaking 

of, our domestic operations. 

Mr. Vermeire. Yes. 

Mr. Wannall. Activities which, if uninterrupted, could 

lead to the overthrow of the government or violation of 

statutes relating to that type of activity. 

For example, our principal statutory basis, and we 

do have all of our investigations based on statutes, would be 

under the Criminal Code, Title XVIII, Section 2383, which 

NW 55 01 Doc d:32989693 Page 11 
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relates to rebellion and insurrection: 2384, which 

relates to seditious conspiracy~ and 2385, the Smith Act, 

which relates to ad~ocating the overthrow of the government 

by unlawful means. 

However, case law has certainly affected the terms used 

in the Smith Ac~ and we must, of course, take into account 

such decisions as in Brandenburg versus Ohio, where the 

state law on criminal syndicalism was declared to be 

unconstitutional because it related only to advocacy. But 

we are basing it on the statutes and take cognizance of 
~ t't :: ;,' L (1:~, 

the s'ba-i!:ttoe&e. 

Mr. Vermeire. What command and control within the FBI mak s 

the determination that something is in the interest.of 

national security? 

Who would make that determination presently? 

.Mr. Wannall. We are getting into the area of classifying 

information. Is this what you mean by tha:t? 

I am trying to fix on the question • 

Mr. Vermeire. In the respect that something is 

classified in the national security interests, obviously, yes, 

I'm dealing with classifications. 

I don't want to go beyond that particular aspect of it, 

though. 

Mr. Wannall. we, of course, are guided by the 

Executive Order on classification. We have a certain number 
Docid:32989693 Page 12 
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1 of individuals who are author.ized to classify. If a 

2 document is classified for national security purposes, a 

3 classification officer must pass upon it. ·. . -
4 Mr. Vermeire. How many such classification officers 

.5 are there now within the FBI? 

6, Mr. Wannull. I can get you the precise figure • 
• 

7 Perhaps I can more readily describe who might be a classifying 

8 officer .. Within our division I wo·uld have classification 

9 authority. My deputy assistant directors would ·have classifi-

10 cation authority and the section chiefs in the operational 

11 sections would have classification authority. 

12 Bob, are there any others? 

13 Mr. · S:hackelford. Yes, the unit chiefs in certain 

14 sections where they handle a lot of classified work have 

15 some classification authority, only in certain sections, 

16 though. 

17 Mr.Vermeire. I know this next question is a little 

18 beyond your bailiwick, but would that same principle hold 

19 for sections and units within the other divisions? 

20 Mr. Shackelford. No. 

21 Mr. Vermeire. That is just within the Intelligence 

22 Division? 

23 Mr. shack~lford. As far as I am aware, because we 

24 handle the bulk of the classified information. 

25 
It is based on a need. The general criminal division, 

~ 55301 pocid:32989693 Page 13 
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1 for· example, handles little, if any, classified information. 

2 I don't know for sure. They may have maybe one man who can 

3 classify documents.·. I can't say positively, I'm not 

4 sure. 

5 Mr. Vermeire. Is the judgment as to classification 

6~ made by anyone qther than yourself reviewed by anyone else? 

7 Mr. Wannal·l. Every classified document that goes out 

8 of the Bureau in the form of a p~ece of signature mail has to 

g· go through channels above the level of the Assistant Director. 

10 His initialing a letter would certainly indicate that he 

11 also agrees with the classification assigned to it. 

12 Not every document goes through such channels. 

13 Mr. Vermeire. Does the occasion ever arise that 

14 a determination or decision by someone that, anyone 

15 who has the power to make a decision obviously, that something 

16 is classified as national security, is that ever refuted 

l7 by anybody? 

18 · Mr ... wannall. Frequently, yes, because the classification 

19 authority must rest also . in some of our field offices. 

20 The material that is reviewed at Headquarters is reviewed 

21 not only frem the standpoint of its substance, . but also 

. 
22 from the standpoint of its classification. There are many 

23 occasions where the classification is overruled. We do not 

24 consider, really~ a document classified until it is to be 

25 
disseminated, the ultimate classification. When the 

m 55301 l>ocid: 32989693 Page __,1~40 ___ _ _ 
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13 • do"c~lli"llent is disseminated, the person who makes that 

dissemination makes the ultimate final determination on 

any classification. 

Mr. Vermeire. So there is authority within the field 

offic~ level for classification? r. 

Mr. Wannall. That is right. 
\ 

Mr. Vermeire. Who does that rest with in each particular 

field office? 

Mr. Wannall.r would anticipate that each SAC would have 

authority, but I'm not certain. For the most part it is 

with the supervisors of those squads handling work related 

to it. 

By the way, I might add that we are required to furnish 

a complete list of our classification officers, and· 

keep it updated, to the Department of Justice which.has 

a Classification Review Committee. The function of that 

committee principally is to make the ultimate determination 

on -classification if a.doclli"llent is to be released in 

connection with an FOIA request, in connection with pending 

litigation. So there is an ultimate authority vested in a 

committee that functions directly under the Attorney General 

within the Department of Justice. 

The FBI has one member on that committee and his title 

is Document Classification Officer of the FBI. He functions 

within our Inspection Division. 

cld:32989693 Page 15 
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Mr. lrmeire. • My next question is really a definitional 

one because many times we get into semantical problems 

with the Bureau and -v1hat you mean and what we think you mean. 

Do you equate internal security with national 

secu:. ity? 

Mr. Wannall. No, I don't. I think there are phases 

of internal security which have a bearing on national 

security. But I don't call domestic intelligence the same 

as foreign counterintelligence. 

Mr. Vermeire. Many of these questions I know you may 

have covered in briefings with us or may have been answered 

in documents you sent to us. But obviously now we are on 

the record and I want to put it on the record. So excuse 

it if you feel it is repetitious. It may be, but I. am 

sure you understand the reasons for it. 

Mr. Oliphant. Let me ask you this: Within the 

Internal Security Division, or the Internal Security 

Investigations certain groups are designated as subversiver 

is that correct? 

Shall I say classified, or designated? What would 

be your terminology? 

Mr. Wannall. Well, I hesitate because I don't think we 

ever attach labels as such. 

Mr. Oliphant. What criteria are exercised before 

an investigation of a group is undertaken? 
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1 :. Mr. ~V'annall.The criteria are in the manual. If the 
' 

2 activities of the group fit within that criteria, that is a 

3 basis for an active investigation. 
"· ' 

4 Mr. Oliphant. Understanding that you are referring 

5 t0 the manual, could you just on the record give us a 

6' synopsis of what that criteria would be? 

Mr. nackelford. Do you mean a synopsis of 87? 

8 Mr. Oliphant. A synopsis of the criteria you would need 

9 before you opened an internal security investigation on a 

10 group. 

11 Mr. Wan~~ll. 87 is a long thing. Let's see if I can 

12 satisfy your question. 
c~ - ........... 

13 Our manual sets forth that the FBI investigation~ violat~cij$ 
,-

14 ;~certain statutes and conducts investigations under ·orders 

15 of the Attorney General. It then cites the principal statutes 

16 \vhich relate to our internal security operations. I have 

.17 referred to three of them before. There are others • 

18 The Internal Security Act of 1950 could come into play, 

19 sabotage, espionage, protection of foreign officials. 

20 We could furriish a listing of statutes if you would like 

21 to have that. 

22 Mr. Oliphant. I understand. 

23 ·Mr. W~np~ll.we do then cite statutes as a predication 

24 for any investigation in our internal security field. 

2.5 The manual then instructs that if in£ormation is received 

1M 55301 l)ocld:32989693 Page 17 
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. 
1 or developed indicating a group is engaging in activities 

Z which, if uninterrupted, could lead to a violation of that 

3 statute, that is a basis for investigating the group. 

4 Mr. Oliphant. All right, Hr. Narmall·.· 

5 M~ question to you is: Who within the FBI is tasked-with 

6: designating which groups fit that criteria? 

7 Who is designated with looking at the allegations, 

8 looking at the substance of the intelligence developed, 

9 to see whether these groups merit a continuing investigation? 

10 Mr.Wannall. In the field, if an allegation is received 

11 indicating the group may be subject to investigation, pro-

12 vision is made in the manual for a preliminary inquiry.which 

13 is limited to checks of indices, checks with established 

14 sources, informants; in other words, a gathering of information 

15 available through already establishd sources or re9ords. 

16 It precludes any active investigation in the sense 

.. 17 that you go out and ask questions, in the sense that you 

18 try to target an informant against the group, i~ the 

19 sense that it would be considered for any active investigative 

20 technique. Within a 90-day period, if the field determines 

21 through preliminary checks that there is no basis to the 

22- allegation, the authority not to investigate rests with the 

23 field. It makes the determination. It closes the matter and 

24 there is not necessarily any record at Headquarters. 

25 If a determination is made that it is felt that there 

NW 55301 Docld:32989693 Page 18 
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1 is a basis for an on-going investigation, the entire results 

2 must be furnished to Headquarters with a recommendation 

3 that an on-going o~ active investigation be instituted. 

4 A .determination is then made at the headquarters level 
.· 

5 as tu whether an investigation should be pursued. < 

6: In other words, the field has the right to say no, 

7 but not to say yes. That rests with headquarters. 

8 At headquarters we have supervisors assigned to spe8ify 

9 areas of our work, each of whom operates under a supervisor 

10 in charge. I~ may be a group of from three to five or six 

11 or seven men. 

12 The determination is made within that group unless 

13 there is some question as to whether the guidelines are 

14 being followed, in which case it would go to the section 

15 chief for determination. He has the opportunity, if he does 

16 not feel he should make the determination, to go to a branch 

... 17 chief which is a deputy assistant director. We have two, 

18 one of whom concentrates in the internal securi~y area. 

19 The determination is then made at that level. 

20 If there is any question that it should go higher, normall 

21 the facts are reduced to a memorandum for consideration 

on higher levels. There have been occasions, and I can think 

23 o~ several during the last couple of years, where we have 

24 . gone to the Criminal Division of the Department of Justice 

25 and the decision is made by the Chief of the Internal Security 

NW 55301 ocld:32989693 Page 19 
...__ _ _ _ __ J.L 



-------------------------------- ------------ ----------

18 

1 Section there. 

2 . Mr. Oliphant. Is this in fact followed with regard 

3 to all groups on which investigations of internal security 

4 are conducted? 

5 Mr. Wannall. It is followed. It can be cut off at the 

6• various levels I have explained but there is no determination 

7 made on the field level for an on-going investigation of 

8 a group. 

9 Mr. Oliphant. Are you familiar with the Institute for Poli y 

10 Studies? 

11 
Mr. Wannall. Yes, sir. 

1.2 Mr. Oliphant. Was such a procedure as you have just 

13 
outlined followed with regard to that group? 

14 
Mr. W~nnall. When was the investigation on IPS. opened, 

15 
Bob, can you say approximately? 

16 
Mr. Schackelford. That is an older investigation. 

·'17 
It would go back probably into the late '60s, at least. 

18 
. Mr. Wannall. I would say there are manual ~revisions 

19 
which are available to you. The manual is frequently revised. 

20 
It was rather extensively revised in August of 1973. 

21 
The procedures in the manual prior to that time would 

22 
~till require review at a headquarters level. 

23 
Mr. Oliphant. Would this review that you have 

24 
laid out be memorialized in writing? Would there be a 

25 
record of all the steps of this? 

NW 55301 ocld:32989693 Page 20 ------- ----------- -~ -- -~~ 



19 • 1 Mr. Wannall. In our case files, yes, I think so. 

2 Mr. Oliphant. There would be a review of this with 

3 ~egard to the Institute for Policy Studies, correct? 

4 Mr. Wannall. That is right. 

5 Mr. Oliphant. Do you know, or are any of you gentlemen 

6. familiar with IPS? 

·7 Mr. Wannall. I have never handled it. It was 

8 handled in a branch of which I was chief a couple of years 

9 ago. I have some general knowledge tvi th respect to it. 

10 But I do not have detailed knowledge. 

11 Do you have anything that will help you in replying 

12 to questions on this, Bob? 

-
13 Mr .. S!hackEHford. I can talk in general terms about 

14 it. I did not handle the case personally but I have a 

15 fairly good working knowledge concerning the time it was 

.17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

M--J... Wannall.Is it still an on-going investigation? 

Hr. ,S·hackelford·. ·No, it is not. 

I . 
I Mr. Oliphant. When was it terminated, if you .. }~now? 

Mr. Shackelford. I cannot give you a termination date. 

I don't know. 

Mr. Wannall. I can give you an estimate because 

the case came to my knowledge shortly after I moved into 

the domestic area of our operations. I~ ~rior to May 9, 

ft , : 

1972j fl7 entire career had been spent in counterintelligence. 

NW 55301 ocid:32989693 Page 21 
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• 
1 i. Within a matter of thre~, four, or five months after 

2 May 9, · the IPS case came to my attention. I discussed it 

3 

4 

with the Supervise~ and issued instructions to him to have 

the entire case reviev1ed on a fi~ld level to determine . 

/ 

20 

5 whetherthe bases that existed at the outset of the investiga-,·: 

6 · tion still existed. This was done and within a year 
~ 

7 the investigation was terminated. 

8 So I would guess it was terminated within the past year. 

9 Mr. Oliphant. Why was the investigation begun? 

10 Mr. Wannall.I would have to refer to the file to tell 

11 you that. 

12. Mr. Oliphant. Can anyone else answer the question in 

13 general terms? 

14 Mr. Shackelford. I cannot give you a specific answer. 

15. 

t. 1 -~~ <" P<u..:!.~·ht ~~ \ ~· ::·,•·. 
I would prefer to give you "the files. 

16 Mr. <?1iphant. Was it fair to indicate that the case 

17 was closed because it was found there was no further 

18 investigative merit pursuant to the investigation which 

19 you began after you assumed duties? 

20 Mr. Wannall. I would say it was fair to say that 

21 the investigative steps which were logical had been completed 

22 and the investigation had been terminated by a decision 

23 that there was no further basis for_investigation. 

24 Mr. Oliphant. To yqur knowledge, did any indictments 

25 
proceed from the investigation2 
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1........--- ··- - - ...ll-----



• 21 

1 Mr. Wannall.No, and I think this can be sa~d for a 

2 large percentage of the investigations in the domestic 

3 area like this. 

4 Mr. Oliphant. Were any indictments referred to the 

5 Depa~ · tment of Justice and I mean any appropria te u. S. 

6 - Attorney also -for prosecution? 
- \ 

·7 Mr. Wanpall.Every single report in every one of our 

8 cases is furnished to the Department of Justice. 

9 Mr. Oliphant. I understand, but were any of them 

10 ever brought to any attorney with a request for serious 

11 consideration of prosecution and then prosecution was declined? 

12 Mr. Shackelford. They are presented to the 

13 Department periodically. 
. 

.14 Some cases come to mind immediately, the Gainesville 

15 Case, the Berrigan Case, these were conspiracy cases that 

16 arose--

17 Mr. qliphant. -- out of the IPS study? l 
I 
I 
! 

18 

19 

Mr. Shackelford. · I'didn't understand the r~striction 

to the question. I 
--~ l 

20 Mro Oliphant. I'm referring to the IPS. 

i 

21 

22 

Mr. Shackelford. No. 

Mr. Ryan. The Intelligence Division does not refer l 
23 its security type investigations to local U. S. Attorneys. 

24 These are furnished to the Internal Security Section 

25 of the Criminal Division of the Department and in every 
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1 instance reports are furnished and a decision regarding 

2 prosecution is made by the Department. 

Mr. Oliphant ... I understand, but as a result of these 

4 files being furnished~ were any prosecutions ever sugg~sted 

5 or ever specifically declined? 

Mr. Ryan. As Mr.Wannall suggested, the overwhelming 
' 

7 percentage of our investigations are not those that 

8 · would develop prosecution. We are looking for evidence. 

9 _Mr. Oliphant. Was any evidence revealed during the 

10 IPS investigations ever used for any criminal trial? 

11 Mr. s ·hack "alford. Not to my recollection. 

12 Mr. A±kisson~. Was anything dev eloped in the investigation 

13 of IPS which led the Bureau to classify or designat~ 

14 that organization as subversive or any other like name? 

t5 Mr. "Wannall. I think I probably have addressed myself 

16 to that·, that we don't try to classify an organizat:ion as 

17 subversive. 

18 Mr.Atkisson. You laid out certain criteria for 

19 justifying continuing investigation of an organization. 

20 I thought I understood that justification to be 

21 tantamount to the same thing, that the justification for 

22 continuing an investigation would be that the organization 

23 was potentially subversive. Am I wrong in my impression? 

24 

25 
]~ 55301 

Mr. Wannall. My answers have been based on a manual 

revision. I referred to it earl~er, an extensive one made 
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1 and implemented in August of ,1973. 

2 Mr. Atkisson. Let me ask you this: The investigation 

3 of IPS lasted, evidently, some five years or more. 

4 Can you recall any specific information gathered which 

5 justified that long an investigation? Did leads develop? 

6: Was there any·:.:hin.g that was developed which would lead any 

7 reasonable person to believe that organization was dangerous 

8 in any -r.vay to the security of the. United States? 

9 Mr. Wannall.I think you are getting into an area of 

10 jurisdiction. In other words, should we have opened on 

11 the IPS or should we not have opened or should we have 

12 continued to pursue the investigation or should we have not? 

13 I will be very glad to trace our jurisdiction in that 

14 area from the time that Mr. Hoover took over. I can do it 

15 in a relatively short time if you would be interested in 

"16 hearing i:to 

17 In other words, we are structured and have been since 

18. August, 1973, on a statutory basis. Prior to that 

19 time we were carrying out our authority under certain 

20 Presidential directives, the directive of the National 

21 Security Council and subsequently the directive of the Attorne 

22 General ii1 1964. 

23 . Mr. Oliphant. Mr.y.loiillmallc: with regard to these 

24 organizations on which you collect information after 

25 
the review which you laid.out before, what sort of material 
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1 do you look for? What sort of intelligence_are you trying 

2 to collect? 

3 Mr. Wannall.A~ the present time, or are you talking 

4 about the entire time? 

5 Mr. Oliphant. Let's say since 1971. 
,-

6: ·Mr. Wann~ll. In 1971 we were certainly structured 
• 

7 and operating on the basis of the Presidential directives. 

a I will be glad to read to you if you would like to have 

9 it in the record --

10 

11 

12. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

!8 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
n~ 55301 

Mr. Oliphant. Not so much the directives. I am interested 

in what sort of intelligence you were looking for to get 

into your files. 

Mr. Wanp~ll. May I place the categories in the record? 

Mr. Oliphant. Sure. 

Mi. W~P.I!-@..l.l.we are going .back to the first time that 

.the FBI entered into the field of intelligence gathering. 

From 1924, when Mr. Hoover became Director, until 1934, 

we have in our files much evidence to show that .he consistently 

repelled any efforts on _the part of anybody to place the 

FBI in the role of an intelligence gatherer. 

As a matter of fact, the Fish Committee, which goes 

back to about 1930, made efforts to p~ace the FBI in an 

intelligence-gathering role at that time. 
'>{/: . . th·~ • ' .. ~ i. ... ) 

Mr. Hoover·consistently ib-epl?e.Y.eGJ.. and said we investigate 

violations of law, period. In 1934, Mr. Roosevelt called 
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together Mr. Hoover and several officials of other 

agencies expressing concern regarding the activities 

in this country of ,Nazis and pro-Nazis and ordered an 

intelligence investigation to be conducted relating to such 

activities. The Department of Labor, at that time, had 

jurisdiction .over deportation statutes and that was the 
' 

agency which had the basic statutory jurisdiction. But the 

FBI was ordered to gather intelli~ence. 

In 1936 there was another meeting. I think perhaps 

you have been furnished this material. 

Mr. Oliphant. Yes. The historical perspective 

is interesting. Assuming ·you have the authority, be it 

statutory or by directive, to engage in intelligence-gathering 

. 
activities, I don't think anyone is disputing that, the 

question isr and let's put it in a ·current perspective: 

Since 1971, more specifically since COINTELPRO ended, 

what sort of intelligence are you looking for? 

Mr. Wannall. We are looking for intelligence relating 

to matters which would be of interest to the Executive 

Branch of the Government, more specifically the Attorney 

General and through him the President, to permit him to 

discharge .his responsibilities in carrying out the functions 

of the Executive. 

Mr. Oliphant. In collecting this intelligence 

do you incorporate into your files everything which is 
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'\t t told to the Bureau? 

2 Mr. Wannall.we have no recourse other than to 

3 ' incorpo_rate into thl'= files everything that is told to 

4 the Bureau. 

5 Mr. Oliphant. So there is no selection of some things 

6• put in and some things not put in. 
~ 

7 
i;.,- ,.. 

Mr. ~ann~ll. Everything is ~p~~~.· ~ 

8 Mr. Oliphant. Do you put s~mething in regarding 

9 somebody's sex life? 

10 Mr. Wannall.If that is part of a complaint, yes •. 

11 If somebody reports about somebody's sex life and it 

12 has no relevance, the agent receiving that weuld not record 

13 it. 

14 Mr. Oliphant. What about materials that you collected 

15. from somebody's garbage? 

16 Mr. Wannall. You are talking about trash coversi'which 

17 we have not engaged in since July, 1966, so that doesn't 

18 cover the area of 1971. 

19 Mr. Oliphant. Are you saying you have not collected 

20 any information from garbage collections since 1966? 
J 

21 
Mr. Wannall. I'm saying we have not instituted trash 

22 covers. Relating your question specifically to the 

23 IPS, I'm fully aware of some allegations that have been made 

24 by an indivdiual ·who claims to have performed certain 

25 
functions at the instructions of the FBI as an informant. 
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~ 1 Our review of his allegations has indicated that on one 

2 occasion he carried from an office, presumably of the IPS, 

3 an envelope of material which was turned over to 

4 an agent. The agent reviewed the material, turned it back to 

5 him and has made statements t o the effect, under oath, that 

6 : it appeared to be information that had been gathered from 

7 a trash basket. 

8 M~. Oliphant. Isn't it true that other information 

9· regarding the IPS was gleaned from trash coliec~ion from 

10 some material which the IPS was throwing away? 

11 Mr. Wannall.This is the only incident in which I 

12 can even relate to information received from materidl being 

13 thrmvn away. We had no trash covers on the IPS. 

14 Mr. Atkisson • . Was there ever an incident, do you 

t5 recall, of information being reconstructed from a typewriter 

16 ribbon that had been thrown away by IPS? 

-17 Mr. :wannall.I will have to say I have no knowledge. 

18 If· either of the other t~.;o men do, I'm sure they, will address 

19 themselves to it. 

20. Mr~ shackelford. I don't have any specific recollection 

21 about that. I have a vague recollection, but it is too vague 

22 to discuss -. If there was, I presume it· came out of the package 

23 that Ray referred to and has to do with the informant who 

24 made these allegations. You are aware, aren't you, that this 

i I 2s matter is under civil litigation? 

mt 55301 D 
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"' 1 
Mr. ·Atkisson. Yes, I am. 

2 
Mr. Vermeire. The area of material gathered in the 

3 
course of investigation, now, I would imagine an agent 

4 
would weed out from any investigative report the irrelevant 

5 
material. I mean he knows the difference between relevant 

6 ; 
and irrelevant material, I suppose. 

7 
Mr. Wannall. Our instructions in the manual specifically 

8 
provide for that. 

9 
Mr. Ve~-meire. Therefore, I would think in the course 

10 
of an investigation which specifically involves some criminal 

11 
offense or even in the course of intelligence gathering, 

12 
material pertaining to one's personal .life and one's sex life, 

13 
et cetera, to my mind would be considered irrelevan~. So 

14 
I cannot see any situation where that would, and if you can 

1~ 
I would be happy to hear your views on it, where that 

16 
should be considered in a report. 

17 
Mr. Wanrall. I can assure you since our restructuring 

18 
in August, 1973, there is no question in anybody's mind 

19 
that such material would be irrelevant. 

20 
Mr. Vermeire. There would be no question that it would 

21 be irrelevant. 

22 
Mr. Wannali.There is no question that it would not be 

23 relevant to . the investigation. 

24 Mr. Vermeire. Anq therefore would not be placed in 

I 25 

J, 55301 

the file. 
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Mr. Wannall.It would not be recorded an,d reported. 

Mr; Vermeire. But prior to· '7 3 such information might 

have been recorded? 

Mr. Wannall.r think it is quite possible. We do engage 

in electronic surveillances. Ii we should have a surveillance 

on an establishment, it is for a given purpose and 

with very stringent guidelines. During.the course 'of that 

information could be secured whic~ is completely irrelevant 

to the reason for our surveillance. If it were recorded, as 

it must be, and the tapes retained for ten years under instruc-

tions that material somewhere would be lodging in Bureau record~ 

but it would not be removed, recorded and reported as signifi-

cant to the investigation. 

Mr. Vermeire. Why was there such a significant break in 

investigative techniques in 1973? 

Mr. Wannall. Principally because an analysis was made 
l~'l.l\,D~ 

by a predecessor ~nd a determination}~ I think, that we should 

be aware, I think as we always have been, of the climate of 

the times and restructure on a strict statutory basis. 

I think the history of the Bureau, and I \vould not 

bore you with details, has been one of responsiveness, 

an awareness of the climate of the times, and restructuring. 

· Mr. Verrneire. Who decides the awareness? 

How do you glean from the times this mood? 

Mr. ~annall. When Mr. Hoover was there, and I should 
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1 not denigrate Mr. Kelley's ability, he has the same ability, 

2 he was quite sensitive to this. Perhaps you have been 

3 furnished documentation that in July, 1966, he discontinued 

4 numerous investigative techniques. I have no other reason 

j to believe that he discontinued them than he felt that times 

6' had changed and we were getting into areas which had been 

7 acceptable before and would not be acceptable in the future 

8 and he ·~ut them off. 

9 Mr. Vermeire. Times may change; Mr. Wannall., but the law 

10 doesn't change. Are you saying that Mr. Hoover would gear 

11 his operating procedures or his general philosophy of the 

12 Bureau based upon what he considered to be the changing times 

13 or would he follow the mandate of the law? 

14 Mr.Wannall. I would say from the il.me I worked under 

15 1-1r. Hoover that he was quite aware of the mandate of 

'16 the law. ·I am aware of.the fact that there were certain 

17 procedures followed of which he was aware that have been 

18 described as outside the law. I cannot address 'myself 

19 to \vhy he did that. 

20 Mr. Ryan. There have been changes in the law, too, which 

21 are very important. The Keith decision, for example. 

22 Mr. Ve·rmeire. But I thought you ·were dealing with 

23 the question of the mood of the country. My only 

24 question is that the Federal Bureau of Investigation is 

25 
a law enforcement agency. It is not a sociological one. 
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"'' 
1 I was wondering how the mood relates to the law. 

2 If the law is not alw~ys responsive to the mood of 

3 the country, the l~w may not change. That seems to me 

4 a legislative question. 
t 

5 Mr. Ryan. l!;:":."13'ttitn·k Mr.· hannal \vas not indicating \ve 
-( 

6 : make social judgments. When the tenor of the times is such 
• 

7 that campuses are being burned or civil rights workers are 

·a being murdereq, it is important that the FBI adjust 

9 and adapt its iesources to handle these violatiqns. 

10 Mr. Wanrrall. Yes, I would like t6 explain my answer. 

11 I think I am entitled to do that. 

12 Mr. Vermeire. If we are going to get into some of the 

13 COINTELPRO type activities, we are going to go into that 

14 later and if your answer attaches to that, I would ask you to 

t5. hold that until later on. 

16 What I'm saying is that I want to give you full benefit 

17 of explaining anything you might have said. If you want to say 

18 it·now, go ahead. 

19 Mr. Wannall. I would like to make a couple of remarks. 

20 We got into the area of investigating Communism i~nediately 

21 after the war and Congress itself recognized the threat 

22 of Communism in 1950 by the Internal Security Act of 1950 

23 and also by the Communist Control Act of 1954. 

24 We were 'in the area of investigating civil rights 

25 conspiracies. Congress has addressed itself to that by 
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va'rious statutes like in 1964 which comes to mind. 

we · were in the area of campus riots and the bombing 

statutes were passed in 196-8. Interstate movement to eng~ge 

in riot activities was addressed by Congress by the anti-

This is what I meant when I said I think Mr. Hoover was 

quite conscious of the tenor of the times. Frequently our 

activities in intelligence gather~ng preceded the statutes 

because I think we acted more quickly than Congress would be 

able to act. This is \vhat I had in mind. 

Mr. Ryan. May I add to that? 
. ; 

Mr. Vermeire. Certainly. 

Mr. Ryan. We don't make social decisions ' in the 

FBI, as Mr. Wanna~ stated. But during the first five months 

of '67 there was racial violence in cities resulting in 32 

deaths, injuries to 200 people, and property damage of over 

$100 million. This is when the FBI readjuste~ its resources 

to· handle this product of the times. 

This is the type of basis. 

Mr. Vermeire. We will get back to that because I 

think that is the basis I brought into the fore before. 

Was there · a change in procedures in '73 which would dictate 

the FBI change its procedures with respect to relevant 

and irrelevant investigations? What happened in 1973 or 

thereabouts that would necessitate this, to me, quite significa t 
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.: 

1 ch~nge in investigative procedures? 
I 

.2 Mr.Wanvall~ I think probably the gearing down of the 

3 Vietnam war at the time had some Qearing on ·it. 

4 Mr •. Shackelford. Ray, could I answer that? 

5 For one thing, I think you have to take a historical 
c 

6: perspective. During the period that Dave described, there 

7 was really extraordinary violence out in the streets, 

8 on the camp~ses, bombings, arson, ROTC facilities under 

9 attack and riots of massive proportions. 

10 The Bureau, I think, was heavily engaged in intelligence 

11 gathering and also gathering of information pertaining to 

12 certain specific statutes intermingled_and intertwined 

13 during that period. 

14 Because of the massive scale of the violence, it was 

15 very difficult to attempt to assess the threat. 

16 This was the real problem at the time. Now we had 

17 considerable communications from the Department, from 

18 the White House. Everyone was looking at this. Congress 

19 was making inquiries and the like. So we had gone over probably 

20 heavier into the intelligence-gathering role than we had 

21 prior to that period. 

22 I think 1973, with the termination of the Vietnam War, 

23 \'lith the term.ination of the unres~ on the streets and the 

24 like, 1973, in a loose sense of the wo~d, represented somewhat 

25 
of a return back to what we had done to a certain extent, 
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1 now generally speaking, prior to that period. It was to 

2 refocus again on potential violations and to, if you will, 

3 de-emphasize, I th~nk, the intelligence-gathering functi~n. 

4 Mr. Vermeire. Yes, but how does the mood and the actions 

5 that were occurring at that time relate to putting relevant 

6 : information in files? It seems to me that relevant versus 
• 

7 irrelevant information--

8 Mrv Shackelford. What do you describe as irrelevant? 

9 1'-11 · ~ Vermeire. I'm not sure. Maybe I am mistaken. Were 

tO you specifically referring to personal items of a person's 

11 life? 

12. Mr. Wanna11. That is what you re~erred to. 

13 Mr. S:hackelford. You brought that question up. 

14 Mr. Vermeire. I wanted to know if it went into other 

15. breakdowns of relevant and irrelevant. 

16 Mr. s~hack e1ford. What you are talking about such as 

17 sex lives, I would describe as unusual circumstances, 

T8 certainly not normal operating procedures where something 

19 like that would creep into a file. Bear in mind when the 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2.4 

25 
55301 

Bureau has an investigation the reason we write a report 

is to segregate information and put it into report form. 

When an agent receives information, he has an individual 

value ·. judgment at the time whether to report what someone 

told him and whether it is in fact relevant. 

This issue of personal sex life or misadventures or 
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•' 1 whatever, I do not put much stock in that. 

2 !.think you are talking about relatively isolated 

. . 
3 situations when something like that may have come about. 

4 Mr. Vermeire o I want to pin down exactly \'lhat we are 

5 talking about. I think there is some confusion here. .-

6 .- In 1973 there was a change. Exactly what was that change · 

7 so we are sure, the change in investigative procedures? 

8 What is that with respect to? 

9 Mr. Wannall. At that time a study was made. In May 

10 of 1972 former Acting Director Gray called upon each 

11 assistant director to present a position paper. A position 

12. paper was prepared in line with the type of activities 

13 that we had been engaging in for years and it was rejected 

14 by the Assistant Director of the Intelligence Divislon. 

15 He caused a study to be made by the Research Section within 

16 the Intelligence Division and through some rather faulty 

17 research a determination was made that the FBI should 

18 investigate~ based only on statutes and disregard any Presi-

19 
I v:JS., 

dential direct~. We have completed the study, which will 

2.0 be delivered to your committee today tracing the development 

2.1 of authority through Presidential, National Security 

22. Council, ~G directives, which I think are as valid today 

23 as they were when they were first issued. I think it was 

2.4 faulty research. I learned of this in February of this year, 

25 
but made a determinati'on to continue on the basis that we were 
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s~ructured in August~because I felt that it.was a secure 

basis. There were many questions being raised by Congressional 

committees and oth~rs as to our intelligence ga.thering 

activities. I consulted with others regarding this, including 

the GAO auditors. They were in accord with my decision not 

to change the restructuring that was done in August of 1973. 
lt 

The questions that I have answered at the outset of this 

interview have been based on our current structure. 

If we are going back into what we were doing back in the 

'60s, '50s, early '70s, I would, of course, give you the 

basis on \vh;i.ch we were doing them. Now, "responsive to the 

' 
times 11

, I had prepared some time ago statements that were 

made by responsible officials relating to this era of the late 

'60s such as a television address by President Johnson 

on July 24, 1967 1 in describing events that led to 

sending troops to Detroit during the cityrs riots, he said: 

11 We \'lill not tolerate lawlessness. We will not endure violence. 

It matters not to whom it is done o~ under what·slogan or 

banner. It will not be tolerated." 

In· a second address in July of 1967, the President 

said that this country had endured a week such as no nation 

should li~e through, a time of violence and tragedy. "The 

looting and arson and plunder and pillage which have occurred 

are not part of a civil rights protest." 

These are two of several. 
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1 Mr. Oliphant. Do you regard a television broadcast 

2 as a directive to the FBI? 

3 Mr. Wannall.I do not. We had directives before thato 

4 ·r mentioned that for an illustration of the times. 

5 Mr. Oliphant. Your duties were to carry out the { 

6 · President's directives? 

7 Mr. Wannall. Yes, under which we were operating. He 

8 was saying, here is a target which has a · grave bearing 

9 on the interests of the country. I think under the directives 

10 we previously had this would indicate to us it was 

11 a priority target. All of our intelligence gathering 

12 has to do with isolating areas of priority on which our 

13 investigations are based. 

i11c 14 
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Mr. Vermeire. Tying up the last thing on the position 

papers, you say it was based upon a faulty rese_arch; by whom? 

Mr. Wannall. It was conducted principally by the Assistant 

Director and the head ·of our research section at that ·::.:i.me. I 

am not trying to. fault them. It took us from February until 

October 28 to co~plete this research. Their research was done 

between the middle of May and July 31, 1972. They -.;qere not 

able to retrieve from the files the necessary documents. 

Retrieval is a problem with us, as you probably have 

noted in our responding to your requests. We don't have any-

th~ng computerized. We have to start with a subject and try 

to trace it to various files. 

I cannot fault them for that. It is just that they did n t 

have available the material we have been able to gather in 

eight months. 

Mr. Vermeire. Is this the same position paper forwarded 

to this Committee, the May of 1972 position paper? 

· Mr •. Shackelford. My recollection is that it was. I 

think you have that paper, and . I think a subsequent one back 

in February. 

Mr. Vermeire. I wanted to make sure we are talking about 

the same paper. 

Would it be a fair characterization, then, in sum, this 

position paper was that the FBI was limiting its jurisdiction 

to a statutory one? 
Docld:32989693 Page 40 
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1 Mr. Wannall. That was the result. 

Mr. Vermeire. Is the intelligence division operating unde 

3 this limitation at the present time? 

4 Mr. Wannall. We have not changed the restructuring. We 

5 are operating on the statutory basis at this time and have 

6· been since August of 1973. · 

7 The reason for the delay, the ·position paper was pro-

8 duced on July 31, 1972. It was forwarded to then Acting 

9 Director Gray. He did not act upon it. 

10 Mr. Kelley took over July 9, 1973. As soon as we had an 

11 opportunity to get to him, the position paper was discussed 

12 and within the first two weeks of August, 1973, it was sent to 

13 the Attorney General. 

. 
14 It was August, 1973, then, that we went to a statutory 

15 basis and we have remained on ~ statutory basis since that 

t6 time. 

17 Mr. Vermeire. You say a statutory basis; does that mean 

18 you·are not considering the Presidential direct~ves of 

19 President Roosevelt and President Truman? 

20 Mr. Wannall. We have not been operating within the scope 

21 of those directives since August of 1973. 

22 Mr. Vermeire. The FBI's reasons for its entire domestic 

23 intelligence program, it seems to me, was rooted essentially 

24 in these directives. 

25 Mr. Wannall. It was. I think it still is, but we are 
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1 aw~iting decisions by the Attorney General, ~y the President, 

Z and certainly by the Congress, as to what the FBI should do and 

3 the parameters with~n which it should operate •. 

4 Without making a speech, I would like to say that that 

5 is pr~cisely what we would like to do. 

Mr. Vermeire. 
~ 

Then would it be fair to say that the 

7 FBI -- I know this sounds simplistic -- is not engaging pres-

8 ently in domestic intelligence? 

9 Mr. Wannall. We have trouble with definition of terms. 

10 We are invest~gating domestic organizations. We are gathering 

11 information on those organizations. But our investigations of 

' 
12 them are predicated on a statute. 

13 Mr. Vermeire. All right; let me phrase my question anotheJ 

. 
·14 ·way. What were you doing, or could you do, with respect to 

15 statutory and Executive Orders 1 and so forth, directives, 

16 authority that you can't do under pure statutory authority? 

17 
Mr. Wannall. I perhaps can give you an illustration. 

18 
Under a very broad authority based upon the Pres~dential direc-

19 tives and the subsequent documents which the FBI looked at, 

20 
~he entire scope of activities within the United States as to 

21 
what was going on in the nature of activities that might have 

22 

W ~1-~ " 1 ' - ~ r 1 " : { / 

an impact on the internal security of the countryAmany of 

23 
these ·activities were of relative unimportance. With the man-

24 
power we have, we could not possibly investigate everybody who 

2.5 
advocates, and we do not investigate people who advocate

1
the 
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overthrow of the government. However, at the time the Smith 

Act was passed, it specifically provided for that~ It was the. 

case law, the court,decisions that narrowed the scope. 

In this overall area of accumulating information on what 

was going on in the country by various groups -- and here we 

have difficulti~s with definitions, but accept the term sub-

ver.sive activities, groups that might be .engaged in activities 

that were or could be detrimental to the internal securi~y --

gathering information, some of it was of no value. That which 

was of value was made available to the officials who had respon 

sibilities in particular areas. 

For example, if we should receive·informatio~ regarding 

an alien that would be of interest to INS, the information 

would go to INS. 

The Presidential directive of September 6, 1939 called 

upon the la\11 enforcement agencies to turn over to the FBI 

information relating to espionage, counter~espionage, 

subversive activities, and such matters. 

We were a focal point to receive and sift information. 

There is an historical background here which would take some ti e 

t~ show why that was done. It will be in the document you 

will receive today. 

Mr. Vermeire. Excuse me. Is this a document that we 

ordered, or a document you are bringing with you? 

Mr. Wannall. You had requested documents bearing on our 
ocld:32989693 Page 43 
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1 jur,isdictional authority. You have received_previous documents 
I 

2 This one was completed October 28. It was approved by 

3 Mr. Kelley yesterday. So, responsive to your previous request 

4 for information relat~ng to our jurisdictional basis, the docu-

5 ment i~ being furnished to you. 

Mr. Vermeire. What is inside that document you are tell- · 

7 ing us nm-1 in substance, or somewhat abbreviated? 

8 

9 

Mr. Wannall. I am interpolating; yes. You asked whet we 
.f-" :; be. 

conceive our jurisdiction~ The document will show various 

10 areas in which the President expressed an interest. Those 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 
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areas changed. 

Basically, when we started out, we were in a pre-war 

period and a wartime period. Most of our activities were 

. 
foreign-related. However, there were activities in the 

Longshoremen's Union on the West Coast, indication& of 

Communism infiltration and control. Mr. Roosevelt was inter-

ested in knowing about that. 

So where do you det"ine domestic activity, apd -v1here do you 

define foreign activity? However, the intention of President 

.Truman during whose term the National Security Act of 1947 

was passed, was certainly expressed when a Puerto Rican 

nationalist group endeavored to assassinate hirn "the 1st of 

November, 1950. 

Mr. Verrneire. At the Blair House? 

Mr. Wannall. At the Blair House. He called upon two 
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~ 1 committees which were created under the Presidential direc-

2. ti ve, one of which was known as· the Inter.departmentl Intelli-

3 gence Conference, tpe other of which was known as the ICIS, 

4 Interdepartmental Committee on Internal Security, to report to 

5 him what happened, '\vhy didn't we know about this situation. 

In effect, he was saying a domestic terrorist group has 
' 

7 tried to kill me. What can be done to prevent this again? What 

8 was the importance, or was there any information that you had 

9 gathered beforehand to show that this might occur? 

10 Which is intent certainly -- as we can interpret it only 

11 through what the man says and what his writings indicate -- tha 

12 he anticipated that the ~~, which consisted of the FBI and 

13 the three military intelligence agencies, should have an inter-

14 est in securing information relating to a domestic terrorist 

15 group. 

16 Mr. Hoover reported to the National Security Council in 

17 
1954 and in 1956 on the scope and extent of the activities 

18 
under_ Presidential directives, which showed investigations 

19 certainly in the domestic field. 

20 So we had the charter to try to establish in what 

21 
quarters the threat existed. In doing that, yo~ gather a 

. 22 rather large amount of information, and you try to define the 

23 
area of the threat and then focus on that area. 

24 
At the present time, we are starting with an allegation 

25 
of a violation of a statute and during the course of 
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1 ' I • • 
~nyest~gat1ons of organizations we will certainly gather what 

2 could be defined as intelligence information. 

3 Mr. Vermeire. .. But there is no prevent.ive, anticipatory, . . 

4 long-range information-gathering at this particular time? 

5 
c . 

Mr. Wannall. With respect to civil disturbances there are 

6 ' such activities under a specific directive from the Attorney 
' 

7 General. 

8 Mr. Vermeire. What is that d.irective? Have we supplied 

9 that yet? 

10 Mr. Wannall. It is outlined at the end of Section 122 

T 1 of the manual. There is a section headed "Civil Disturbances". 

12 Mr. Vermeire. I have that here. Okay. 

13 Aside from that, though, your answer to my question would 

14 be no? 

15 Mr. Shaclcel:"ford. That would be correct, basically. 

16 Mr. Vermeire. I must admit this is an astonishing bit of 

·t7 information. I don't think anyone has had any--

18 Mr. Shackelford. We can sit here and get into a lot of 

19 definitive terms as to what is intelligence-gathering. For 

20 example, through your coverage of the structured subversive 

21 organizations based on statutes, the way the manual is struc-

22 tured at the present time, a fairly comprehensive amount of 

23 intelligence information concerning planned activities and the 

24 like flows out of that investigation. You could call that 

25 intelligence, advanced intelligence, for example, flowing out 
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1 of the substantive, investigative case. 

2 The pure intelligence-gathering that occurred before 

_;i had in its underpin~:-dngs, because there 
. 

statutes, even you were 

4 concerned with activities which you thought might proceed ... .· 
{ 

5 into, for example, anti-riot law violations and a lot of our 

. 6: investigative or so-called intelligence activity at that 

~~ f-li s 
7 time -- I am talking late sixties w~ geared toward this 

8 possible violation. 

9 Mr. Vermeire. Right. I understand that, .but my question 

10 again is, and I will try to use every phrase I can think of, 

11 anticipatory, preventive, long-range 

1.2 Mr. Shackelford. It scales it down. I think that is 

13 our answer to that question. 

14 Mr. Wannallo I perhaps can use an example. There was a 

_15 time a demonstration was going to occur, and we learned of it; 

16 we would have agents present to observe to see what was going 

17 on, to see if there were violations of the law, local or 

18 Federal. 

19 If there is a demonstration at the present time, we do 

20 ·not cover a demonstration unless it is sponsored by or partici-

21 pated in by an organization or individuals on whom we have an 

22 active investigation based on a statute. 

If we learn that an organiza~ion which is under our cur-

rent investigative attention is organizing a demonstration, 

.we would be interested in observing the demonstration to 
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determine 
I 

knowledge 

Does 

Mr. 

a-~ •• 
if the activities are such 

with regard to the overall 

this help? 

Vermeire. It helps. It is 

that would add to our 

activities of the group. 

hard, because to get a 

concrete example, you have to deal with a specific case. 

It would all be_ based on a case-by-case basis, but, for 

example, say you had X-number of informants who had infil-

trated or were supplying information as to various organiza-

tions, and so forth, that would be considered, say, subversive 

prior to 1973. 

You are saying now that these informants are being pulled 

out~ in essence, they are not still continua~ly developing 

intelligence information. 

Mr. Shackelford~ Within the subversive groups under 

investigation. 

Mr. Vermeire. Investigation with respect to a particular 

crime? 

·Mr. Shackelford. Potential crime. 

Mr. Vermeire. Pote~tial; is there a probable cause? 

Mr. Shackelford. Of course not. 

~1r. Ve~meire. So then we are in the same. situation, then? 

Mr. Wannall. You brought up the informants .• I would iike 

to address that by some specifics. Sadat is visiting the 

United States today. He has ' been in the country for some time. 

If an informant who is operating for us within a group that we 
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have under investigation based on a statute, has information 

indicating that anybody in the United States is· going to try to 

assassinate Sadat, we will accept that information from him 

·arid give it appropriate dissemination. That would have no 

bearir1g on the operations of that organization v7hatsoever. 

At the time of the Cuban crisis, October 22, 1962, there 
\ 

was a demand for information on the part of the Executive, 

the President, to assist him in making rather grave decisions. 

We sent out to our field offices a teletype saying, "Please 

have your informants endeavor actively to gather information 

having a bearing on activities of groups in this country who 

might be sympathetic to Castro or might be sympathetic to any 

cause which could work to the detriment of the government." 

I think there were several hundred sources; no~ just 
bv.r 

informantsAelectronic surveillances, individuals w~om we con-
A 

tacted regularly in connection with matters of~law enforcement 

nature, several hundred, perhaps nearly five hundred various 

sources that provided information which went into the hands of 

the White House situation room. 

So we are operating informants, and if informants can 

provide information, significant information of value, to the 

government in discharging its responsibilities in the foreign 

intelligence field, in the foreign relations field, in the 

counter-intelligence field, we will accept the information. 

And I am glad to have the opportunity to advise you of 
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.. 
•' 

2. perhaps would require the issuance of a judicial warrant before 

3 we might utilize an,informant. Whether or not probable cause 

/ 
4 would be required for that warrant, we would be in the posi-

5 tion once the warrant was issued of utilizing an individual 

s = in an intelligence and information-gathering capacity within 
' 

7 a specified group. If he endeavored to report in some area 

.a other than the group's activities, we would have to decline to 

9 accept information from him ~ecause it would be outside the 

10 terms of the judicial warrant. 

11 This is why I think, in giving consideration to matters 

12 of this type, the overall effect not on the F~I s~lely and 

13 exclusively, not on the United States intelligence community 

14 solely and exclusively, but on every law enforcement agency in 

15 . this country should be considered. 

t6 Mr. Vermeire. In any event, the document that you are 

17 delivering to the Committee today outlines fairly particularly 

18 this entire new, if I can use that word, procedure.that is 

19 being followed? 

20 Mr. Wannall. No, sir. 

21 

I 22 

Mr. Vermeire. It does not? 

Mr. Wannall. No. It outlines wibh great particularity I 
23 

the development of our jurisdictional basis for gathering intel \ 
24 

I 

25 

ligence, both in tne domestic field and in the foreign counter 

intelligence field. They are very interwoven in the developmen I 
I 

. -----------
--~-
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1 of :the jurisdiction. This document will do that with supportin 

2 papers. · 

3 Mr. Vermeire. Is there any document you couilid deliver to 

4 us that can, as best as possible, show the difference between 

5 what you were doing prior· to 1373 and the procedures which are 

6: followed now? 
\ 

7 It is hard to sit here and go through examples, and having 

8 problems with the semantics as necessarily we will have. 

9 Trying, at least in my own opinion, to get ~ clear idea of 

10 what exactly the FBI is doing in the area of domestic intelli-

11 gence today·, it would help if I could see what they are not 

12 doing now that they were doing then. 

lS I get the feeling if we even sit here for another half 

14 hour, I won't get a clear picture. Is there any docliment that 

lS. sets that out with some particularity? 

iQ Mr. Wannall. No; the only thing I can suggest, and perhaps 

11 you already have, are the manual sections as they were struc-

18 tured at any given point in history. If you want~d the ~anual 

19 section as of 1965, if we can recover that, you would have our 

20 guidelines as of 1965, and you could compare this with our 

21 guidelines as they appear in the manual today. 

22 ·Mr. Vermeire. As I see it, the various statutes on the 

23 book, for example, espionage, of course we are dealing with 

24 
matters of counter intelligence; is that correct? 

25 
Mr. Wannall. Usually. 
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1 Mr. Vermeire. In any event, the theory would be, is there 
.. 

2 a potential for this person or this individual or this organiza 

3 tion to violate the law and that potential can be based upon 

4 prior acts, prior actions, or information from a reliable in-

5 formant? 

6~ You say it doesn't approach probable cause. There is 

• 
7 another legal definition called reasonable suspicion, which is 

·a s.lightly less than probable· cause. There is probably something 

9 
less than that which I am not aware of. 

10 But is there any standard? What is the standard that is 

11 
to be followed? Because if there is no set standard, then 

·12 
there can be no review; there can be no evaluation on propriety 

13 
or not of the particular action. 

14 
I am looking for a standard, if there is one. If it is 

1S 
just the potential of violation of the la\v, to me that is 

16 
extremely yague. ~ don't get anything out of that. 

·17 
Mr. Wannall.· I have no document that would give you that. 

18 
In.any area at some point a judgment must be exercised, and 

19 
the way we endeavor to control that is by havi~g review of the 

20 
judgment at headquarters. 

21 
Mr. Oliphant. Addressing yourself specifically to the 

22 
Socialist Workers Party, what about a.number of these people 

23 
who have been followed around for relatively long periods of 

24 
time, members, careful documentation, when they go to meetings, 

when they come back, where they live, who they are employed by, 
25 
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everything, with absolutely no allegations of.criminal activi-

ties. 

When exactly does an executive decision get made; let's cu 

this off; let's cut off the resource allocation on following 
.· 

this guy around:· 

o~e~ 
Mr. Ryan. I think you have simplified the investigation 

• 
of the Socialist Workers Party. There is_ foreign involvement 

with the Socialist Workers Party~~~~~a&~. There is in 

the past some evidence of terrorism within the group, support-

ing advocacy of terrorism. I think you cannot take something 

and say as simple as why are we investigating the Socialist 

Party? 

Mr. Oliphant. I am not talking about investigating it as 

a monolith, Mr. Ryan. I am talking about the investigation 

of individuals within it, individuals where there had been no 

allegation they had been involved in any terrorist activi-

ties, no allegations of them espousing any sort of terrorism, 

no allegation of them in touch with any sort of foreign powers. 

Mr. Ryan. I think you are wrong, on all counts. The 

b~sic philosophy of the Trotskyite movement -- of which the 
r.,nr~~ ~,· ··' 1- ~ · .... ) ; ,JP,'f"t'-'tJ 

Socialist Workers Party is the 'leading mezy.eme~ -- is only -a 

- violent revolution candestroy capitalism. They also believe 

,/ . 

all political groups other than their own are counter-revolutior "~.! 

and must be destroyed. 

The Socialist Workers Party maintains affiliation with the 
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'1 Fourth International. There are elements of that which is 
I 

2 based, I believe, now in Brussels, which support terrorist 

3 activities, particu~arly in Argentina and other .foreign coun-

4 tries. 

5 w~ in the Bureau are much concerned these elements which 

6 ; are within the Socialist Workers Party within the United States 

7 may reach a point of influence where they could present a 

8 direct threat. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

11 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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Mr. Atkisson. Let me understand this, Mr. Ryan. Are 

you saying the involvement with terrorist activities from the 

Bureau's point of view is that it is involved with the !nter-

national, and that the International in turn is involved with 

terrorist activities in Argentina? Is that borrect? 

Mr. Ryan. There is a group within the Socialis~ Workers 

Party in this country which is called the Internationalist 

Ten~encyt which strongly supports elements of the Fourth 

International, which endorses terrorism and terrorist acts. 
. i 

.Mr. Atkisson. In investigating the SWP since 1947, has the 

Bureau ever uncovered any single item of information which 

would directly link any member of the SliP to any terrorist 

activity? 

Mr. Ryan. I think a point here is.that the Smith Act of 

1940 was first applied against the Socialist Workers Party in 

this country. 

Mr. Atkisson. Can you answer the question I just asked? 
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1 Has the Bureau uncove~ed any information since 1947 involving 
.. 

2. any individual member of SWP to any terrorist activity? 

3• Mr. Shackelford. Directly involved in a terrorist 

4 activity as such? 

5 Mr. At~isson. Yes. 

6, Mr. Shackelfo.rd. From my recollection I would say I do 

7 not recall such an incident. 

8 Mr. Atkisson. A little earlier acknowledging that the 

9 SWP has possibly some remote foreign involvement --

10 Mr. Shackelford. I wouldn't describe it as remote, but 

1 i go ahead. 

12 Mr. Atkisson. I asked the question earlier about IPS, and 

13 we g-ot off in all the jurisdictional philosophy. 

14 Any three of you, what, if any, information has the 

15 Bureau ever uncovered about IPS, which prompted further inves-

16 tigation of the IPS over a five-year period -- I am not asking 

17 for type of information; what information? 

18 Mr. Shackelford. I think the answer as far as IPS goes 

19. back to those persons who control IPS and run it, and we 

20 looked very close at the activity of those particular individua s 

21 and - then looked at IPS as a product of theirs. 

22 Mr. Atkisson. You looked at them for about five years. 

23 Did you find anything? 

24 Mr. Shackelford. That is exactly right. 

25 Mr. Atkisson. Did you find anything during those five 
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· 1 years? 
I 

Mr. Shack.31ford. Not for which they could be prosecuted. 

3' Mr. Atkisson. Forget prosecution. Did you find informa-

4 tion whatsoever of a specific nature·which linked any of those 

5 individuals to acts which are detrimental to the inter•·sts: of 

6: the United States? 

7 Mr. Shackelford. Du.ring the period of time of the 

a Bureau's primary interest in IPS, IPS was variously described 

9 as the think-tank of the new left·. They ran seminars, discus-

10 sion periods and training programs which related to disturbance , 

11 riotist-type activity. That, along with the background of the 

12 persons involved in leadership roles in IPS, was the basis 

13 fo~ investigative interest in that group. 

14 Mr. Atkisson. The seminars, were they not, were largely 

15 
.philosophical in nature concerning the anti-war movement? 

t6 Mr. $hackelford •. ·I didn't attend them and can't answer 

1.7 
thatc 

18 
Mr. Atkisson. You received reports on them, did you not? 

19· 
Mr. Shackelford. We received the available information w 

20 
could get. But those seminars were by invitation, and I would 

21 
say our coverage of the actual seminar, and the first-hand 

22 
knowledge, second-hand through the source, was somewhat limited 

23 
in scope. 

24 
Mr. Oliphant. Mr. Wannall said advocacy is not enough. 

25 
Let me ask you about that. Was illegal activity ever advocated 
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' 
1 in IPS from the reports the Bureau got? 

2 Mr.· Shackelford. Illegal activity. What we are going 

3 to have to throw ope~ for di·scussion is what we are· talking 

4 about is conspiracy. 

·' 
5 Mr. Oliphant. Fine; I am asking for any 

6 Mr. Shackelford. We are getting into a far-ranging con-

7 versation. 

8 Mr. Oliphant. Was there illegal activity advocated? 

9 Mr. Ryan. If I can interrupt, in ·speaking to Mr. Wannall 

10 and Mr. Shackelford~ on the IPS, they had no warning this was 

11 going to b~ a subject of this hearing, and they are speaking 

12 from memory dating back a long time about just one of many 

-
13 hundreds of investigative responsibilities. 

14 I think if.you are going to make specific questions of 

15 this nature,in fairness to these gentlemen, that you give them 

·Hi advance warning on it. 

17 Mr. Oliphanto I think Mr. Shackelfordqualified his 

18 statements he was going to make on IPS earlier with the fact 

19 he \vas dealing from memory and that this would ·be not a 
--... .. 

20 specific.answer. 

21 Mr. Shacke.lford. You are getting to specific questions. 

22 Mr. Oliphant. We are asking specific questions, under-

23 standing on the record he is dealing from memory. 

24 Mr. Vermeire. Anything that cannot be answered in 

25 det~il now, as far as notice is concerned, I would think you 
i 
INW 5530 L II 
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3 

would be put oltnotice that the question ~y c~me up in the 
I 

course of a hearing. 

Mr. Shackelford~ In the hearings ·we will . run into a 

63 

4. legal problem because of the civil litigation. 

5 Mr. Vermeire. 1\le can deal with . that. We can ah.,rays ~ 

6 consider going into Executive Session. 

' 7 Mr. Atkisson. Let me say I think one of the more produc-

8 tive things to be accomplished in this interview is to indeed 

9 put you on notice as to areas we ~re concerned with so that 

10 we may properly assure that the people who do know about these· 

11 things can be present at that hearing, or that Mr. WannaU,if 

12 he is the chief witness, can be backed up by appropriate per-

13 sonnel and records, and so on. You will have time for review. 

14 Mr. Wannall. We appreciate that opportunity because we are 

15 dealing in an area we have not looked at for a year or longer. 

16 Mr. O~iphant. What exactly is the Fourth International? 

17 

p.o:J R ... 

Mr. Ryan. In the Communist movement there are th~ee lnter 
:t! r\~ 

18 nationals. The Third International ts~controlled from Moscowo 

.19 To distinguish the Stalinist Communists from the ~rotskyite 

20 Communists, the title Fourth International was utilized. 

21 Mr. Oliphant. Nho controls the Fourth International? 

22 Mr. Ryan. I can give you a little rundown about the 

23 Trotskyite movement in this country. 

24 Mr. Oliphant. No; the Fourth International. 
w , .. $ 

25 
Mr. Ryan. That 1zS. controlled by those individuals \vho 
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. . 1 support the philosophy of Leon Trotsky. Leon Trotsky, in a 
.. 

2 very simple· way, basically believed in world revolution, 

3 whereas Stalin felt the revolution should be consolidated in 

4 tbe Soviet Union. 

5 ' Mr. Oliphant. Do· these people at Fourth InternatL.)r!.al 

6 ; have a power base? In other words, I take it the Third 
. ~ 

7 International at least is backed by Soviet Russia; is that 

.8 correct? 

9 Mr. Ryan. Yes. 

10 Mr. Oliphant. All right. Is the Fourth International 

f 1 backed by a~y major power? 

12 Mr. Ryan. It is backed by Communist elements in almost 

13 all the major countries and some of the Third World countries. 

14 Mr. Oliphant. Is it backed formally by the Communist 

15 Party in any major country or minor country, by the Communist 

t6 Party? 

17 Mr. Ryan. That is a difficult question for me to answer 
.• 

18 because you are dealing in the international area, and we are 

19 primarily concerned about the United States. 

20 Mr. Oliphant. I understand that, but certainly one of 

21 the reasons --

. 22 Mr. Ryan. There are Trotskyite elements in many countries 

23 
of the world in close liaison with the movement in the United 

24 
States. 

25 
Mr. Oliphant.· Who runs the Fourth International? 
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· .. 1 M Shackelford. r. Participating Trotsky groups in the 

2 various countries support the Fourth International as a 

3 governing body of the Trotskyites. 

4 Mr. Oliphant. Does it ·have a building? 

5 Mr. Shackelford~ It is physically headquartered ~D c 

6~ Brussels. I don't know if they own the building, rent the 

7 space, or what. 

8 · Mr. Ol~phant. Do you know how many people are in the 

9 Fourth International? 

10 Mr. Shackelford. Not from memory; no. 

11 Mr. Oliphant. Has there been any evidence that the Fourth 

' 
12 International has the backing of any recognized viable, 

13 political force in any country . as opposed to having elements 

14 which could be anywhere from one to one hundred thousand 

15 individuals backing it? 

16 Mr. :?hackelford. The answer to that would be no. The 

only way it could be yes is if the Trotskyite Communist Party 

18 in a given nation took control of the nation. 

19 Mr. Oliphant. But as of right now, is there any major 

20 power within any country that can throw its support behind the 

21 Fourth Int~rnational? 

22 Mr. Shackelford. My previous answer would stand. The 

23 various Communist parties in the various nations support the 

24 Fourth International. 

25 
Mr. Oliphant. Is there any country where the Trotskyite 
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party is· in a dominant position? 

Mr. Ryan. I think the answer to that is no. 

3 Mr. Shackelford. Not in a dominant position; no. 

4 Mr. Oliphant. Where is the Trotskyite party in a power-

5 ful position? ' 
< 

Mr. Shackelford. Argentina, for one place, and several 

7 Latin American countries, the Trotsky parties have considerable 

8 influence. 

9 Mr. Vermeire. In what countries, if any r has any Tro·tskyi"" e 

10 organizatiorr had a . significant effect in overthrowing the 

11 government? 

12 Mr. Ryan. If you would excuse me, we do have information 

13 about foreign Trotskyite organizations, but you are primarily 

14 within the bailiwick of another agency at this time~ 

15 Mr. Verme.ire. Right; but I think it relates to the FBI 

16 expertise in determining the threat that a particular organiza-

17 tion poses. If the SWP poses a threat because it has a rela­

18 tionship with the Fourth International, I.think it is imperativE 

19 to get a reading of how dangerous the Fourth I?ternational is. 

20 :tvlaybe if the reporter would repeat the question, or I can 

21 give it again. Is there any evidence that any organization, 

22 any Trotskyite organization that has t·ies with the l'"'ourth 

23 
International, had any significant effect in any overthrow of· 

24 
any existing. government i~ any othe~ foreign country? 

25 
Mr. Ryan. I do~'t know of any such instance. There is · 
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1 Trqtskyite influence in many governments. 

2 Mr. Vermeire. Well, the Democratic Party has influence, 

3 and the Republican ~arty has influence in our country. That is 

4 n?thing illegal. 

< 
5 Mr. Ryan. We had the Smith Act of 1940 i~l this country 

6~ and which prescribes against the advocacy ·of violent overthrow 
\ 

7 of the gover~ment. The Trotsky organizations in this country, 

8 and specifically the Socialist Workers Party, which is a lead-

9 ing group: advocate the violent overthrow of the United States 

10 Government. 

11 Mr. Oliphant. Where do you see the violent overthrow of 

12 the government being advocated by the Socialist Workers Party? 

13 Mr. Ryan. 'l'hey have never repudiated the writings of Leon 

t.:.. • • ' t~ 

14 Trotsky, who specifically calls for world revolution. The 'On~¥ 

15. difference with Stalin is that Stalin said the revolution 

16 should be consolidated first in the Soviet Union. 

17 Mr. Vermeire. .Aren't \ve talking two different things? It 

18 is one thing to have a certain theory that goes back thi+ty-five 

19 years --

20 Mr. Ryan. I think you are interested in the FBI philosophy 

21 in investigating the Trotskyite movement. 

22 Mr. Verrneire. If I can finish the question, it is one 

23 thing to say they never repudiated Trotsky beliefs; there has 

24 never been a formal repudiation, but I would think that one's 

25 actions, an organization's actions over the course of thirty-fi 
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' 1 years, actions that have peen peaceable and complete compli-

2 ance with the laws of the host country, might, in effect, be 

3 kind of repudiation of that thirty-five-year-old, forty-year-

4 old philosophy. 

5 Mr. Ryan. This pertains to the degree of a threat. 

6 · Mr. Atkisson. ·oo you see any distinction between advo-

7 eating violence and believing that it will occur? 

8 Mr. Ryan. The Supreme Court has gone into this concept. 

9 The Smith Act still remains in for.ce. 

10 Mr. Atkisson. I am asking if you see any distinction 

11 betwe~n advocating violence -- by advocating violence, I mean 

t2 I, John Atkisson, say to you, Mr. Ryan, I want you to go out 

13 and beat Mr. WannaU over the head. 

14. Do you _see any distinction between that and my saying that 

15 
I have a sincere belief that Mr. WannaUwill be beat over the 

16 
· head sometime.tomorrow? Do you see a distinction between 

17 
those two concepts? 

/;f/ 

18 
Mr. Ryan. The distinction has to be madeAthe ~nd-product. 

19 
What action do you take to bring about the beating? 

20 Mr. Atkisson. That is precisely the question. 

21 
Mr. Shackelford. Here we get into a relative situation 

22 
comparing the Trotsky, CPUSA, Communist Party of the United 

23 
States of America, with groups such as the Weathermen and the 

24 
like. What we are dealing with is the broad spectrum of the 

subversive movement. You get into difference in --

i 
I -- . ~ - - ----- ·--l 

so-called 
25 
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1 ·you shake you~h~ad, b~t hear me out. 
I 

Mr. Oliphant. You are linking the Weathermen and S'\IP 

3 in the answer. 

5 

Mr. 

range. 

Shackelford. I am talking about a spectrurn1of 
J 

Mr. Oliphant. I think Mr. Atkisson's question, which he 

7 would like ans\llered, is, do you have any acts that the Socialist 

8 v~orkers Party has done to bring this about? What are those 

9 acts? 

10 Mr. Shackelford. The Socialist Workers Party -- at the 

11 present time their philosophy would be to continue to build the 

12 party to gain the strength to bring about the revolution. So 

13 
long as they engage in the party--building function for the 

14 ultimate purpose of engaging in the revolution. As f ·ar as I 

would be concerned, I would look at that as a continuing act 

16 
toward th~ violation. 

17 
Mr. Atkisson. Let me ask you this: If the ERA amendment· 

18 
is.passed by the 28th state next year, will that constitute in 

19 
your mind a revolution? 

20 
Mr. Shackelford. The equal rights amendment? 

21 
Mr. Atkisson. Yes. 

-
22 

Mr. Wannall. We are at a disadvantage because while you 

. 23 
have been talking, I have been thinking back to the extent of 

24 
influence and/or control of some of the groups that were 

25 
engaging in confrontations during the demonstrations in the late 
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1 sixties or early seventies. I would not wa~t this record to 

2 show that we had no information indicating that not a single 

3. member of the Social;.ist Workers Party did engage in activities · 1 

. . 
4 of that nature. We would have to go back to our files and try 

5 to respond to your question after a review. 

6' Mr. Vermeire. Mr. WannalJ. and you other two gentlemen, 
• 

7 you mentioned before how the FBI is sensitive to the moods of 

8 the.country, and you have alluded on a number of occasions 

9 to the Smith Ac•c. How many convictions have there been of 

10 persons under the Smith Act in the last ten years? Do you 

11 know? 

12 Mr. WannalL None,to my knowledge. 

1~ .... Mr. Ryan. There have been a number of convictions 

14 excuse me, since 1950. 

15 Mr. Vermeire. I am talking about the moods of the coun-

16 try in the last ten years. 

17 Mr. Ryan. None.· 

18 Mr. Vermeire. How many arrests have there been? 

19 Mr. Ryan. The Supreme Court has rendered the Smith Act 

20 ineffective for prosecutable purposes. It remains a statute. 

21 Mr. Wannall. The Department advised us on November 1, 1974, 

22 that a basis for investigation was the·smith Act. 

23 Mr. Vermeire. I am trying to tie it in. We are dealing 

24 with a group whose _only claim to fame or in-fame has been 

25 convictions under the Smith Act. Those convictions go back, I 
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be~ieve, to the late forties or early fifties; I am not sure. 

2. All I am saying to you, and I don't mean to argue, is do you 

3 think the Socialist,Workers Party may be in for or should · have 

4 a reevaluation as a subversive organization? 

5 Mr. Ryan. If I can answer you, in the FBI you are re-

6' qui~ed to follo\v,groups who advocate violence,and experience 

·7 shows that these groups at different times have different 

8 levels of propensity for violence •. · 

9 As you say, the Socialist Workers Party now may not be a 

10 threat, and I agree compared to other organizations now they 

11 are at a low level as far as propensity for violence goes. 

. . 
12 Maybe some pro-Maoist groups, elements qf that development 'I\ the 

13 SLA, -m~bB~~~~,are more violence-prone. 

14 
IN'If~T;"~·;:.n· . ~.:; J. " •• 

We do •fe:e:ili'ffie have a responsibility for t:lre;s·ea groups -who ... · 

15. advocate violenc~~when the time is rightJto be aware of these 
ri·-1 : b ~z.r( \ 1" 

16 groups and rurnish bt~$ to the proper agency of the Executive. 

.• 

17 Mr. Vermeire. Earlier this· week, Mr. Wannall a public 

18 statement was made.by a former Attorney General, and also a 

19 high-ranking Justice Department official -- and this will give ~-

20 it away -~ who is a chairwoman of the Justice Department 

21 Committee on the FBI, and in the course of those statements the 

"22 former stated, number one, that the FBI should not even be 

23 engaged in the area of domestic intelligence. That was former 

24 Attorney General Clark. 

25 And, number two, he stated that he felt that an independent 
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1 outside organization or persons should be involved in reviewing 

2 on a continual basis the programs and activities of the FBI. 

3 Miss Lawton stated that she felt the FBI did not have the 

4 sufficient expertise in its domestic intelligence section to 

5 make r-2a.listic and practical judgments as to whether various· 

6 ' organizations _presented threats, a threat or threats, to the ... 

7 United States. 

8 Do you care to comment on any of those statements? 

9 Mr. Wanna·n. I am not aware of the statements. I have 

10 ·heard them from you for the first time, so I have no observa-

11 tion to make. 

12 Mr. Ryan. If I could comment briefly, in 1968, in discuss 

13 ing extremist activity to foment, as he said, "rebellion in 

14 urban ghettoes", the then Attorney General Clark cailed this 

15 "the most difficult intelligence problem" in the Ju~tice 

16 Department. 

17 
Mr. Vermeire. I·arn aware of that. 

18 Mr. Ryan. Apparently his attitude has changed. Since 

19 he was Attorney General, a lot of his public actionsand state-

20 

21 

~ents have changed. 

Mr. Vermeire. The fo~~er Assistant Director, William ·I 
Sullivan, feels that the intelligence-gathering aspectsof the 

23 
FBI and its criminal investigative aspects should be separated 

.24 
and two distinct organizations should be set up. What are 

25 
your feelings on that? 
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These are general questions. Obviously we will get into 

2 more specific ones later. 

3 Mr. WannalJ .• I am rather surprised, because former 

4 Assistant Director Sullivan was certainly the one who 

5 initiated and implemented many of our operations in th.:.s area. 

6· Mr. Ryan. I would like to comment on that a little just 

7 briefly to say that there are elements within the FBI that may 

. 8 feel this way, too, but we are working and operating within 

9 our responsibilities, and this is a matter outside the FBX~ 

11 Mr. Shackelford. Let me pose a practical answer there, 

12. if I may. That issue has been discussed numerous times. It 

13 
~s not really anything new. Some of the disadvantages I think 

14 you would have} the agent training that is received is primaril 

15 
along criminal lines. The cross-feeding of agent personnel, 

16 
for example, from criminal investigations over into security 

17 
investigations, I think certainly has merit. 

18 
It has an end-product, if you will, operating within the 

19. same house to keep us closer aligned to basic violations of law 

20 
and activity aimed toward violations of law. I think that is 

21 
particularly impor.tant. 

22 
Another advantage is the manpowe~ flexibility that we 

23 
have.· If the intelligence-gathering function had been 

24 
separated off un~o itself, say, during the period of the late 

25 
1960's, I don't know where the manpower would have come from 
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1 to cope with the problems that existed in the street. It 

was virtually _an impossible situation. 

3 · It becomes more comp_lex when you get into the· trying of 

c~ses, the searching of indices, the checks that are made 

5 in connecti~n with prosecutim1s. I can remember a period 

6 ·= when Bureau indices 'tvere checked and no other agencies were 
~ 

7 checked. That ultimately became a problem which was recti-

8 fi~d,but the Bureau, and even its intelligence-gathering role, 

9 or its subversive investigations, I think, are. best related 

10 in a law enfo~cement sense as opposed to a pure intelligence 

11 sense without a basis for a tie back to the basic statutory 

12 violations in some way. 

13 Mr. Oliphant. Getting into resource allocation here, 

14 in 1971, what percentage would you estimate of your agent 

15 resource, basically man-hours, were dedicated to domestic inves-

16 tigations of, let's say, internal security investigations? 

17 Mr. Wannall. I am not in a position to estimate that 

18 because we didn't keep any records of that sort. The best 

19 that could be done would be to ask our administrative division 

20 to endeavor to give you an estimate based on the allocation of 

21 money. 

22 Mr. Olip_hant. All right; has the· allocation changed up-

23 ward or downward since 1971? 

24 Mr. Wannall. In our dom·estic area? 

25 Mr. Oliphant. Yes~ 
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1 Mr. Wannal L Downward. 

Mr.· Oliphant. When did the major cha~ge d~wnward come? 

3 Mr. Wannall. I ,would say between October of 1972 and·the 

4 pr·esent time. .• 

5 Mr. Oliphant. Why is that? 

6 : Mr. Wannall. Because in September of 1971, t;U~ Titie 2 
. ' 

7 of the Internal Security Act of 1950 was repealed by legisla-

8 tion. At that time, we undertook to look at all investigations 

9 we had in that area which meant in some instances opening 

10 for active attention cases which had been placed in a mora-

11 torium basis because there had not been enough manpower to take 

12 care of them. And the cases were opened. They were looked at 

13 and since that time many investigations which we would have 

14 conducted prior to that time were closed ann similar investiga-

15. tions were unopened. 

16 Mr. Ryan. If I could briefly add, I might point out 

·that the level of the threat, the degree of the threat in terms 

18 of activity as far as the black extremists were con·cerned, 

19 and I refer specifically to such groups as the Black Panther 

20 Party, and, :as far as the ne"t"l left was concerned, and I refer 

21 to those violent-prone elements of the $DS, and Weathermen, and 

22 in terms of the White hate groups, I refer to ~an-type groups, 

23 
had also phased down. 

24 Mr. Oliphant. How \vould you classify the Viet Nam Veteran-s 

25 
Against the War? How would y~u have classified them? 
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Mr. Shackelford$ Viet Nam Veterans Against the War? 

Mr. Oliphant. Yes, sir. 

Mr. Shackelford. What time period? 

Mr. Oliphant. Well, do you . have ongoing investigations of 

the Vi.e_t Nam Veterans Against the War at the present time?c 

Mr. Shackelford. Let me go back historically a little. 

The VVAW began as what appeared to be a legitimate veterans 

rights organization. Our first investigation of VvAW came 

about wh.:n there was information received of attempts by the .. 

10 ·cPUSA to infiltrate it. 

11 It evolved into what would be essentially described as 

12 a basic Marxist, Leninist revolutionary organization at a 

13 ' national office level. 

14 Mr. Oliphant. When did it become a Marxist-Leninist 

15 operation? 

16 Mr. Shackelford. I can't give you the exact date. 

·17 Mr. Oliphant. Can you document that it is a Marxist-

18 Leninist operation? 

19 Mr. Shackelford. On a national office level? 

20 !-lr. Oliphant. ~\That do you mean by that? 

21 Mr. Shackelford. The national office leaders were advo-

22- eating a Marxist-Leninist revolution line. 

. 23 

/(((t•:j? 
Mr. Oliphant. Would that include John CaT-ey? 

24 Mr. Shacltelford. . No, it did not. 

25 Mr. Vermeire. Was that a personal philosophy, or was that 
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1 ~. a philosophy of the organizat~on? 

2 Mr. Shackelford. Any organizational philosophy is a 

3: direct product of tne leadership. . -

4 Mr. Oliphant. How did the leadership manifest this 
r 

5 Marxist-Leninist philosophy? ·< 

6' Mr. Shackelford. In statements made, material pub-
\ 

7 lished, the position papers put forth in their conventions, and 

8 the· like. 

9 Mr. Oliphant. What did they say, that we are Marxist-

10 Leninists? 

11 Mr. Shackelford. I can't give you exact quotes off the 

12 top of my head. 

13 Mr. Oliphant. I am not trying to be smart. Did they 

14 use the terms Marxist-Leninist, or did you infer from the pro-

15 gram they wanted --

16 Mr. Shackelford. They used the term. 

. 17 
Mr. Ryan. If I can go into a little on that • 

18 
.Mr. Oliphant. Sure. 

19' Mro Ryan. I think it was about two years ago that there 

20 were elements among the leadership of the VVAW who began 

21 
internally ~nd sometimes externally advocating a Marxist-Lenini t 

22 line. About eighteen months ago, we became concerned that the 

23 
Revolutionary Union, which is a pro-Maoist organization, became 

24 
very interested in the VVAW and actually started a campaign 

25 
to take over the VVAW in its entirety. And they have had 
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some success. 

2 There are many leaders and members of the VVAW who have 

3 secretly enrolled in the Revolutionary Union. We are following 

4 the activity of the Revolutionary Union carefully and endeavor-
.• 

5 ing to determine what other inroads they make into the VVAW. 

Maybe you cpuld tell how they stand at the present time 

7 in that area? 

8 Mr. Shackelford. What I was trying to point out is our 

9 investigation of VVAW has changed with the direction VVAW has 

10 taken. We hav~ never, for example, investigated all VVAW 

11 chapters because VVAW has been a very fluctuating type organiza 

12 tion over the years, and I don't think at any one point have 

13 all VVAW chapters, for example, necessarily adhered to the 

14 national office policy. 

15 

16 

VVAW has been in·almost a constant state of flux in power 

struggles among the leadership the VVAW has taken in particu- \ 
17 lar, or in directions which reflect the ·thinking of the 

18 individual leaders. There has been a constant power struggle 

19 within VVAW. They have not adhered to a hard line for any 

20 extended period of time. 

21 Mr. Oliphant. With the exception of the Gainesville 

22 case have there been prosecutions against any VVAW organiza-

23 tions or members? 

24 Mr. Shackelford. I donrt believe there have been any of4(~~ 

25 Fe.deral prosecutions that I am aware of. 

ocld:32~6.9693 Page 73 



• e .. 
79 

1 I Mr." Oliphant. Have there been any state prosecutions? 

Mr. Shackelford. Of individuals? I couldn't really 

3 answer that. 

4 Mr. Oliphant. Have there been any state prosecutions of 

5 groups? 

Mr. Shackelford. Not that I am aware of. 

7 Mr. Oliphant. Have you recommended prosecution? When 

~ I say recommended prosecution, I understand that the FBI 

9 presents its reports to the Department of Justice. However, 

10 I also understand that when there are 302's which go over to the 

11 Department which report general information and then there are 

12 other reports that go over.that basically outline what would be 

13 a case. 

14 All right; understanding that, have there been ·reports 

going over to any prosecutive authority submitted .by the FBI, 

16 . I suppose the Department of Justice, which are laid out in a 

J7 case-like fa-shion in which the ·prosecution has been declined? 

t8 Mr. Shackelford~ I don't believe so. 

19 Mr. Oliphant. Thank you. 

20 Mr. Shackelford. That is with the exception of the 

21 Gainesville case. 

22 Mr. Vermeire. Mr. Wannall sometime in the early sixties, 

23 a series of programs were beg~n by the FBI that were known and 

24 have become known as the COINTELPRO activities. The procedures 

25 utilized in these var·ious programs aimed at various subversive 
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1 • o:cgarliza~iot were not in accordance \'lith Section 87 of the 

2 FBI manual on instructions. In fact, they were quite a depar-

3 ture from traditional FBI investigative and intelligence 

4 practices as had been practiced by the FBI in the ·past. 

5 I would like to know how COINTELPRO germinated, how it 

6 : began, why it began, on whose suggestion did it begin, how was· 

7 it formulated, how. was it carried out, and why was it carried 

8 out? 

9 Mr. Wannall. I have no personal knowledge, but I will en-

10 deaver to respond to your question. 

11 Mr. Vermeire. I understand you were not an Assistant 

12 Director at that time. Perhaps you could tell us at that 

13 time -.;;v-here you were assigned throughout the period of the 

14 sixties. 

tS Mr. Wannall. I can pursue that if you would like, but we 

16 were a-~vare that you were going to talk about COINTELPRO. We 

1-7 were advised beforehand, and that was the reason Mr. Ryan 

18 ca~e along. If you have ·no objections, I would have him addres 

19 your questions. 

20 . Mr • . Vermeire. Fine. I have no objections. 

21 Mr. Ryan. Well, you give a pretty wide area, and I would 

22 like to knmv how much time you would like me to give ·to this. 

23 Mr. Vermeire. You can start off. This is an important 
. 

24 area. We ·would like to devote some time to it. 

25 Mr. Atkisson •. First, let's take a short break. 

(Short recess, and discussion off the record during it.} 
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Mr. Oliphant. I think it was Mr. Wannall~but I might 

2. be mistaken, 'ivho stated -- and I want to be sure I'm not 

3 misquoting her -- ~hat the Smith Act was the justification 

4 for a great number of the investigations regarding groups 

5 under investigation for domes~ic subversion, specifically; 

6 • the SWP. 

7 Then you stated that the Smith Act or perhaps it was 

8 Dave who stated the Smith Act had been rendered nugatory 

9 basically by a Supreme Court decision. However, you were 

10 told that as of 1974, the Smith Act was to be used as 

11 a justification by the Justice Department. Are we to under-

12. stand by that that what you mean is that you have no· hopes 

13 for any prosecutions under that but that that is the 

14 reason that you are allowed to continue to investigate? 

lS Mr. Wannafl. I would like to tell you -...;hat the 

16 
·+--Department .. said specifically in response <;,-o a request that we ./_. 

17 
submitted. 

. 18 Mr. Oliphant. All right • 

19 Mr. Wannall.We asked, in view of the abolition of the 

20 Attorney General's list, which occurred, I think, in about 

21 the spring of 1974, what was required of the FBI to permit the 

22 Attorney G~neral to carry out his responsibilities under 

23 Executive Order 10450, which relates to the security of 

24 government employees. The.Department came back and said, 

25 
11 You should conduct inv-estigations based on such statutes as 
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1 
the Smith Act." 

2 
I interpret this to mean that the Department feels 

3 
that the Smith Act,is still a'viable basis for an 

4 
investigation. It has not been wiped off the books. 

5 
Mr. Oliphant. But as a pr.actical matter, is it possible 

to bring prosecptions under the Smith Act? 

7 
Mr. Wannall. You are asking me a legal question. 

8 
Mr. Oliphant. I'm asking your opinion, understanding 

9 
you are with the FBI and not with the legal arm of Justice. 

to 
But as an investigator and as the man in. charge of the 

11 
agents that primarily investigate the Smith Act, do you 

, 

12 
feel that your men can bring viable prosecutions underneath 

13 the Smith Act? 

14 Mr. Wannall.I still cannot answer your questions. We 

15 don't bring prosecutions. 

16 Mr. Oliphant. Have any prosecutions been considered 

17 under the Smith Act? Let me rephrase that. When was the 

18 last time a prosecution was considered under the Smith Act? 

19 Mr. Wannall.I don't know. That should be· directed to 

20 the Criminal Division. 

21 Mr. 'Ryan. May I add a comment there? 

22 t /f~0 
\During the period from approximately ·1-$:5->2 until 

23 1960, at the requestof the Department of Justice, the FBI 

24 devoted considerable energies to developing evidence to 

25 prosecute the Communist Party under the Smith Act. 
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1 we; exposed over 100 .informants in trials and hearings 

2 relating to the Smith Act. Then the Supreme Court determined 

3 that the Smith Act was not prosecutable. 

4 

7 

8 

9 

10 

1 1 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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Mr. Wannal·l. That was in 1~~9: 

.· 

Mr. Ryan. The Congress thei1 had passed the Internal e 

Sepurity Act of 1950 and the Justice Department placed all 

the FBI available resources into prosecuting the Communist 

Party under the provisions of the Internal Security Act. 

Again, we exposed dozens of confidential informa~ts operating 

within the Communist Party in an effort to cause the 

Communist Party to register under the Internal Security 

Act of 1950 and to abide by the other sanctions and provisions 

of the Act. 

The Internal Security Act of 1950 then through.Supreme 

Court decisions was rendered ineffective. Since that time 

there have been many efforts by Congress to pass legislation 

to help contain Communism. There has not been effective 

legislation to make Communism a prosecutable vio.lation of 

the law. 

Mr. Oliphant. So the bottom line is that right now 

it is not possible to prosecute Communism? 

Mr. Ryan. It is technically not possible to prosecute 

Communists now. 

Mr. Oliphant. Do you have a reasonable ballpark 1 

figure on how many registered members there are of the 
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1 American Communist Party in the United States? 

Mr. Shackelford. None ·registered. 

3 Mr •. Oliphant. How many members registered with the 

4 .Communist Party, let's say? 

5 Mr. Wannall. We had to research this figure ·'about 

6 a year and a half ago. I cannot give you today's figure. 

7 At that time taking into account the Party and its youth 

a affiliate, I think we estimated in the neighborhood of 4500. 

9 Mr. Oliphant. How many of those would have been in the 

10 youth affiliate? 

11 Mr. s·.hack eJford. From memory it is roughly a fifty-

12 fifty break, as I recall. 

13 Mr. Wannall.r didn't get that figure. I will have to rely 

14 on his recollection. 

15 Mr. Ryan. Could we go off the record? 

1.6 (Discussion off the record.) 

17 Mr. Ryano The FBI, from 1956 to 1971, in what I 

18 believe reasonably and within the parameters of existing law 

19 uti~ized counterintelligence program activities for the 

20 sole purpose of limiting the capability of those practicing 

21 massive violence and subversion to the detriment of the 

22 American people and our Constitutional form of government. 

23 
Before I begin briefing you a little bit on it, I would 

24 
like to state that it is my belief that these programs had an 

25 
impact on the crises. of the time. 
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1 They helped bring about favorable change~ The FBI 

2 personnel involved with these programs acted with a reasonable 

3 good faith belief they.were doing what was necessary and 

4 lawful. I would like to point out the Department of 

5 Justice, after a thorough examination of these programs, has 

6• concluded none of the actions taken constitute a prosecutable 

7 violation of federal statutes and only a small minority pose 

8 problems of civil liability. 

9 1-1r. Olj_.J?hant. Is it not true that the Depa·rtment of 

10 Justice did not review each one of these? Didn't they 

11 review a selected sampling? 

12 Mr. Ryan. That is not true. As a matter of fact, I 

13 personally sat down with Assistant Attorney General Stanley 

14 Pottinger and his two deputies who are representatives 

lS of the Civil Rights Division of the Depa~tment and personally 

16 made available all our COINTELPRO files. 

17 Mr. Oliphant. I know they were made available. I'm 

18 not inferring they were made available. Did they actually 

19 review each one of the files? 
i 

20 Mr. Ryan. They spent several days reviewing these 

21 files. I endeavored to the best of my ability to point 

22 them out to specific areas \'lhere we thought there could be 

23 problems and to indicate to them exactly where they might 

24 find problems. We tried to showthem the most hideous exam12les. 

Mr. Oliphant. I am not trying to be a prosecutor. I am 
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1 trying to get an answer here. Did they review each fi~e? 

2 They m~y have seen the most hideous. I am not trying to 

3 quibble. I am tryi,ng to .. put it in accurate perspective. 

4 Did they review each file? 

5 Mr. Ryan; I would like to point out that there are 

6·: probably over 64,000 pages involved here. Some of these files 
\ 

7 they reviewed page by page. Others they spot-checked. 

8 Others, they sampled. Others, they nmed specific areas 

9 that they v1anted to explore in detail. The FBI,. with 

10 good faith and with complete cooperation, made available 

11 to them everything we had. 

12. Mr. Vermeire. Are you-familiar with the specific 

1'3 programs and the various files? 

14 Mr. Ryan. Yes. 

15 Mr. Vermeire. Are you familiar with the one involving the 

16 SNCC and SNCC's application to IFCO in New York for a 

17 loan of money, funds to buy various farm equipment, I believe, 

18 for a cooperative, farm project down in Tennessee? That was 

19 one of the documents we received from you pursuant to 

20 one of our requests. Are you familiar with that particular 

21" one? 

22 Mr. R~qn. I am familiar generally with the files. 

23 When you get into particular incidents, I would like to 

24 point out for . you that there were a total of 3208 incidents 

25 
. 1.-!l'f" 

proposed and of these some .];.:38:.8" were approved according 
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to: Justice Department figures resulting from a survey 
I 

of these programs. 
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Mr. Vermeire. I believe this was not only approved 

but carried out. This was \'/here a letter was sent,. an anonymous 

letter was sent to the lending company, the lending ~ 

organization, and the letter --

Mr. Shackelford. Was this a bank? 

Mr. Vermeire. No, it was a philanthropic organization 

which --

Mr. S:hackel-Eord. I think the record will show the 

type of organization. 

Mr. Vermeire. It was a philanthopic organization. 

It was not a chartered bank. A letter was sent fraudulently 
. 

stating that the person, being the alleged sender of the 

letter, was a seller of farm equipment, and that the deal 

was that the person applying for the loan was going to 

buy used equipment. Whereas he would tell the lending 

iQstitutions he was buying new eqriipment, he was: goirig to 

buy used equipment at the price he was stating to the lending 

· institution, at the price he was stating to them. 

The difference between the money he was getting 

from them for new equipment and the actual value of the 

used equipm~nt, the difference in that was going to be 

split by the person sending the letter and the person applying 

. for the loan. 
Docld:32989693 Page 82 



. ....... 

93 

1 
They were going to cut the difference b"etween them. 

As a result of this let~er, IFCO decided not to lend this. 

3 
particular organization the money. Are you telling me the 

4 
Justice Department attorneys told you there is no·violation 

5 of law there, for example, interference of interstate trade 

6 .: 
or anything o~ ~at type? 

7 Mr. Ryan. I'm unable to comment about this specific 

8 item. All I · can say is that I hay~ a broad knowledge of 

9 the programs and there were very few instances where 

10 fraudulent information was furnished. Most of the techniques 

11 were based upon factual information in this program. 

·12 I do not know whether the Department ot Justice specifically 

13 saw- that technique. I don't know what the intent was. 

14 I don't know what the damages were. I don't know if the anony-

15 mous mailing or fictitious name mailing was effective. 

16 I cannot discuss that. 

17 Mr. Vermeire. You are not aware of this particular 

18 case? 

19 Mr. Ryan. No. --I 
I 

20 

21 

. 22 

Mr. s ·hackleford. I assume that is from the information 

we furnished- you. 

Mr. Vermeire. I understand from the documents, and it is 

I 
t 
I 

23 my recollection that the inter-departmental memorandum 

24 indicated that this was not the case. In the request for 

25 the approval of sending such a letter, there was an indication 
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1 that this was not the case, that it was fraudulent. 

2 There was no such person. The person who sent the letter 

3 was an FBI agent. 

4 Mr. Shackelford. I do not argue that point, .but with 

5 the s~atement as related about buying used equipment 

6 : and representing it as new, was that based on fact or was 

7 that fiction? 

8 Mr. Vermeire. It was fiction. Would you check out 

9 that particular document and be prepared to comment on it at 

10 ' the hearing? 

H 

12 

13 

14 

15. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
mi 55301 

Mr. Ryan. I would appreciate it if you would give 

me a copy of it. 

I understand somebody from your staff would want to be 

briefed further on that particular document. 

Mr. Vermeire. All right, fine. 

Mr. Ryan. On any particular technique we are willing 

to do that. 

Mr. Vermeire. All.right. 

Mr. Ryan. To continue about the overall rationale 

for our counterintelligence program, as you know, the 

first program was effected in 1956 and it was directed 

. against the Communist Party, USA. I again point out that 

we ~re dealing in some areas of sensitivity now. In 1956 

there was evidence indicating that the Soviets were using 

th~ Communist Party as a front for political and intelligence 
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1 purposes. We in the FBI were v~ry conscious of this 

because we knew that many of our espionage cases of the '30s 

3 and '40s grew out o~ individuals who were Communist 

4 Party Members. Also, in the early 1950s, the Communist 

.· s Party had actually put hundreds of members into an underground 

6= status, individuals who changed their names, changed their 
' 

· 7 employments, changed their localities, submitted false 

8 income tr:xes and were operating i~ ·a complete submerged 

9 underground status under the direction of·tlB Party leadership. 

10 The Smith Act as \'le have indicated was unproductive and 

tt because of legal technicalities made prosecution impossible. 

tZ We knew, also, that the Communist Party since the 1940s haa 

13 been used as a vehicle by the Soviets for intelligence 

14 purposes. Since the Party was founded in 1919, I should point 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
~ 55301 

out it has always been a puppet of Soviet .policy and remains 

so today. At that time there were many in this country, 

including prominent Members of Congress, who felt the 
. I N' 1" :.;: I! C1 ,,. 0 

legislation which hc:-d been enacted eox}?>:eeltea the FBI to contain 

Communism. There was a philosophy of "Leave Communism to the 

FBI." Based on this, there were investigators that felt 

the FBI should do more to curtail ·communism. The philosophy 

.. 
of the field agents was reflected at headquarters and the 

Bureau officials ,W'ha~~ conceived ·f~i!ft:1'.tmh~ an organized, 

carefully supervised program in an effort to neutralize 

communist subversion. 
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1 
e 

Mr. Vermeile. 
.. 

Who were these officials? 

2. Mr. Ryan. This was a collective decision 4mad~ I 

3 believe at that time the Assistant Director was Al~an Belmont. 

4-

5 

6; 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

I think he had some input into it. There was a section 

chief named William Sullivan who had input into it. There 

were other individuals on a lesser level. 
\ 

During that period there were a series of regional field 

conferences where the possibilities of establishing 

such a program was discussed. These officials, when 

they came back to headquarters, pursued this further. 

On August 28r 1956, a memorandum was forwarded through 

the Bureau chain of command~-it was subsequently approved 

13 by Mr. Hoover--which authorized consideration of a program to 

14 counter communist subversion. The second memorandurn.was 

15. prepared in September, 1956. Instructions were thereafter 

16 sent out on 9/6/56, authorizing 12 officeps to effect a counter~ 

17 intelligence program against the Communist Party. 

18 Mr. Vermeire. Who was the Attorney General at the time? 

l9 Mr. Ryan. I believe Rogers, but I would have to check on 

20 that. 

21 Mr. Vermeire. Was he consulted with respect to that 

22 program. 

23 Mr. Wannall. I have no information he was consulted, 

24 but Mr. Hoover, in an appearance before the National 
} .}' .: ~ 

25 
·Security Council during the year 1~;§!'&, did point out 
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1 that the FBI had a program involving the neutralization of 

2 the Coffi!Uunist Party. 

3 Mr. Oliphant. Dip he go into detail? 

4 Mr. WannaJ.l. That document I think is available to you 

5 in a posi tiqn paper 'tvhich has ~ previously been turned over~ 

6; to you. 

7 Mr. Vermeire. Aside from that generalized statement, 

8 did Mr. Hoover go into any detail on the program? 

9 Mr. Ryan. Mr. Hoover directed a letter to Attorney 

10 General Rogers dated May 8, 1958,- whe:::e he specifically 

11 advised a program had been instituted in August, 1956, to 

12 neutralize the activities of the Communist Party and he 

t3 set forth examples of techniques that were utilized in this 

14 program. 

15 Robert Cutler, Special Assistant to the President, was 

16 also advised by a copy of this letter. 

17 Mr. Vermeire. What kind of examples were given at that 

18 time? 

19 Mr. Ryan. I did not bring the documentation for you. 

20 It is available. 

21 Mr. Vermeire. Do you recall of your own knowledge? 

22 Mr. Ry_an. I would suggest the fact that we were utilizing 

23 informants to raise controversial issues within 

24 the Party, to question the· philosophy of the Pary, would be 

25 one. We exposed the fact the Communist Party was trying 
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1 to reinstitute a united front effort against a Left Wing 

group which was not a communist control group, basically 

3 these were the technique~ utilized. We were also raising 

4 within the Communist Party some questions relating to 

5 commu~ist philosophy which had been raised by Trotskyites. 

6: 

7 

8 

9 

10 

12. 

13 

14 

Mr. Vermeire. Aside from the disruptive activities, 
' 

the proposed disruptive activities which.may be carried 

on by informants within the Party, were any other techniq,ues 

at least considered at that time and made known to the 

Attorney Gener~l or the people in the White House? 

Mr. Ryan. W~ have considerable information about 

notice given to the White House, the Secretary of State, 

tokarious Attorney Generals, to the House Subcommittee 
I 

on Appropriations relating to these programs. We can . detail 

15 this for you now--~X~~~~ in chronological order. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2.1 

22. 

23 

2.4 

25 

Mr. Vermeire. This is subsequent to 1956, then? 

Mr. Ryan. Yes. 

Mr. Vermeire. Could you detail that at .this P.oint? 

Mr. Ryan. All right. 

On November 6, 1958, Director Hoover presented 

a briefing relating to matters of internal security, 

counterintelligence, to the President; and -se.~ea members 

C' /1 }' i 1! u +-~ 
of the Na>E.'{i;§>·na~~l~~·~~l. We have located in our 

files his notes for this briefing which indicate at that time 

he indicated to these individuals the existence of aformal 
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2 Mr. Verm~ire. Was there any detail of the kind of 

3 . techniques? 

4 Mr. Ryan. As I can recall, and I can document this, 

5· several techniques were mentioned. To continue, then.: was 

6• a letter to Attorney General Rogers which I briefly 

7 mentioned, dated 5/8/58, regarding Communist Party activities 

8 wh~ch specifically advised we had instituted a counterintellige ce 

9 program in August of '56. 

10 A copy ofthis letter was directed to Robert Cutler, 

11 Special Assistant to the President. 

12 There was a letter to Attorney General Kennedy dated 

1"l . ..., Janua~y 10, 1961, which attached a comprehensive memorandum 

14 which set forth sensitive information regarding the · 

15 ·Bureau's investigation of the Communist Party. 

16 There are examples of counterintelligence program activit 

17 set out in this letter. 

18 A .. copy of this letter 'vas sent to the Secretary 

19 of StatE?t whoJ¥. I believe at that time was Dean Rus.k. There 

20 was a letter to Attorney General Katzenbach dated 

21 September 2, 1965, which outlined in some detail our 

22 ipvestigation of the Ku Klux Klan and·other hate groups. 

23 
This letter pointed out that the Bureau was seeking 

24 to disrupt and neutralize theactiyities of the Klan. 

25 
A copy of this letter was sent to Marvin Watson at 
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e. 
the White House. 

I 
v iJ l) k?P.... 

It is interesting to note that;~ date of 9/3/65 

Attorney General K~~zenbach directed a response to this letter 

nJ 
to Director Hoover where he expressed the hope that at 

n1tr..i·J1" 
some time it mg_oy. be possible to place these activities on 

the public record so the FBI could receive its due recognition. 

Mr. Oliphant. I think that is going to happen, Dave. 

Mr. Ryan. On December 19, 1967, Director Hoover sent 

a letter to Attorney General Ramsay Clark regarding 

·our activities to neutralize the violence-prone activities 

of the Ku Klux Klan. He enclosed with this letter a compre-

hensive memorandum regarding our Klan investigations where it 

was clearly set forth that we were using counterintelligence 

type techniques to neutralize the Klan. 

A letter was sent to Attorney General Mitchell _by 

the Directo~ dated September 17, 1969, outlining our counter-

intelligence program directed against the Klan and assuring the 

Attorney General that we ·\'muld continue our efforts to neutrali ?:e 

the violence presented by this group. 

Mr. Oliphant. Did any of these letters show that ~ny 

of the programs were being conducted against the other 

groups besides the Khn and the Communist Party? 

I 

Mr.·, Ryan. Black Extremist, the New Left, and SWPf 
ow'-y 

These are theAletters we have located. 

Mr. Vermeire. So at the present time you have no 
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1 evidence that let~rs were sent regarding t~e Black 

Extremist, the New Left or the SWP? 

3 Mr. Ryan. Yes .. I will continue with this. . -

4 I do not have the date with me, but by accident 

5 one time a teletype captioned ·•'Cblnterintelligence Program, 

6 ~ Black Extremists, Black Nationalists, 11 was sent to the 
• 

7 Department of Justice by routing slip. It outlined in some 

8 detail a successful counterintell~gence technique effected, 

9 I believe,against the Black Panther Party. 

10 Mr. Oliphant. What was the response from the Department? 

1 t Mr. Ryan. There was no response. 

12 Mr. Oliphant. Who got that at the Department? 

Mr. Ryan. I believe it was sent to the Internal Security 

14 Division. It was the special litigation section. 

15 Mr. Oliphant. Is there any record of the fact of who 

. to received it or what if anything was done with it? You know • 

let's be practical, the fact that a letter went over 

18 to the Department might mean something significant if it was 

19 routed to the appropriate person, or it might mean 

20 it got buried in an avalanche of mail that went over 

21 there and ended up in _somebody's desk drawer. 

22 Mr. ·Vermeire. A.side from the response of Attorney 

23 General Katzenbach that you referred to, were any of these 

24 letters ever responded to? 

25 
Mr. Ryan. No. If I may continue, during the period 
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1~58 to 1966, on six occasions detailed information was 

prepared for off-the-record testimony of the Director 
' . 

·~· 

before the Subcomm~ttee on Appropriations of t~e u. s. 

House of Representatives relating to our counterintelligence 

progi~ms. We have the information that was prepared and 

may be presumed to have been used by the Director. --, -
As you know, he often went off the· record before 

this committee to advise them of sensitive areas of our 

operations. 

Mr. Oliphant. Is there anyone who was with him at 

that time \vho can testify? 

Mr. Ryan. Yes. On Novewber 1974, Mr. Wannali I believe, 

contacted former Assistant to the Director Cartha De Loach 

and he advised Mr. Wannall, and Mr. Wannalt duly recorded this, 

that he recalled briefing Attorney General~ark re~arding 

our counterintelligence activities, President Johnson, and 

he was also sure that Mr. Sullivan or Mr. Belmont had 

briefed Attorney General Katzenbach. 

19 Mr. Wannall, I believe, also contac±:ed John Mohr, a 

20 former Assistant to the Director, in November of 1974~ 

21 Mr. Moore recalled on several occasions the Director had 

22_ furnished details to the House Subcommittee on Appropriations 

23 r~lating to our counterintelligence program activities. 

24 Mr. Oliphant. To the House as a whole or selected 

25 members of the House? 
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Mr. Ryan. Selected members. 

Mr. Oliphant. The House Subcommittee as a whole or 

let's say to Mr. R~oney? 

Mr. Ryan. The House Subcommittee on Appropriations 

was cnaired by Congressman Rooney. 

Mr. Oliphant. I understand that. 
' 

When they say they \vere advised, and let's say it was 

off the record, does that mean during the hearing? 

Mr. Ryan. During the hearing, yes. ' 

Mr. Callahan, who is presently Associate Director 

of the FBI, also recalled in November, 1974, basically 

the same information furnished by a former Assistant to the 

Director, John Mohr; that is,that the Director had 
-. 

on several occasions furnished details to the House Subcommitte 

on Appropriations relating to our counterintelligence 

investigations. 

I can personally tell you that during the period 1963 
<:' 

to approximately 1967, ·there were numerous ~s occasionem 
1\Sg~·t> 

when I was h:a'l:ang~uea"'T!~:n'ma~ann.er-;;;of·=speae-n1Y, to prepare backu 

~aterial for the Director 1 s use, relating to successful 
Pt<~G Rt~m 

counterintelligenceAtype activity. This was prepared in 

an informal manner. It was often prepared immediately 

pri~r to the Director's briefing of an important dignitary . 
of government, including the President. It was my 

understanding that this was going to be furnished to the 
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1 DiTector for his use in briefing these individuals. 

2. Mr. Vermeire. What President? 

3 Mr. Ryan. You would have to go back to the period 

104 

4 1963 through 1967. That constitutes basically the notice 

that we have given to appropriate and important government 

6, officials regarding our COINTELPRO type activities. 

7 Are there any questions on that? 

· a Mr. Oliphant. Is there any documentation? 

9 I appreciate the documentation you have given and I can 

10 see it represents a lot of work, getting that together. 

11 Is there any way that can be pinned down as to how much 

12. of this was actually passed on? 

1~ You have the stuff that \vent over to the Department. 

·14 Is there anyone who was advised of any feedback? 

15 In other words, did these letters cause any stir? 

16 Were they appreciated by the Attorney General or anyone 

17 who got them? Did they understand the import? 

18 ~r. Ryan. Mr. Katzenbach sent what might .be referred 

19 to~as a memorandum ,£gfcommendation on it. We have that 

'20 documentation. Mr. Katzenbach has since been interviewed 

21 about that. He has indicated he cannot recall doing it. 

. 22 He has also stated that it was his habit sometimes to flatter 

23 
people. 

24 Mr. ·Oliphant. What about any other of the Attorney 

25 
Generals? 

Nti 55301 Docld:32989693 Page 94 
~,.....____ __ 

1 

\ 

I 
I 

\­

\ 

\ 
t 
t 

\ 
I 



- - ~ . '\ 
105 

- 1 Mr. Wannall.I would suggest you might want to talk 

2 to Mr. DeLoach who by tele~hone advised me he had briefed 

3 the-Attorney Genera~ on not just this program, _but the 

4 programs in general that the Bureau was carrying out puring 

5 
j+r.~ 
"''h'~i . d t, .t .. per~o • 

6 , He might be able to furnish information based on his 
' 

7 knowledge because he indicated there were ora~ briefings. 

8 Mr. Olipha•nt. 1\lho accompanied the Director when he 

g went before the House Appropriations Committee? 

10 Mr. Ryan. Mr. Mohr and Mr. Callahan generally. 

1 1 Mr. Ol~phant. Have you talked with Mr. Mohr or Mr. 

12. CalLahan as to whether in fact Hr. Hoover did brief 

13 the committee as a whole? 

14 

15 . . 

16 

l7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

... 
Mr. Ryan. Mr. Wannal~ has talked to ·them and has 

recorded his comments in memorandum form which were made 

available to mea 

Mr. Oliphant. What did he say? 

vJ {W r<~ I• J-1. 
-Mr. ~- I talked with Mr. Mohr • . He said, ·yes, 

the off-the-record testimony that we had prepared 

for the Director had been given before the House Appropriations 
• .!¥> 

Subcommittee by Mr. Hoover. In reviewing the r~cord ~estimony, 

there were indications of off-the-record discussions 

at particular points at which the information would have been 

discl.osed. 

Mr. Vermeire. Did the Congressmen have any questions 
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1 wi~h respect to the program or was it more in the form of a 
I 

3 

4 

5 

briefing by Mr. Hoover to them? 

l,t n t~ n t\\,!,.. 
. Mr. a~~· I ca~ only relate to what Mr. Mohr said. 

He indicated t~they expressed interest in them. He 

indicated they did not express any disfavor over them •. 
c 

He 

6 ' was calling on recollection~ We do have compiled off-the-

'7 record testimony that was prepared for that purpose. 

8 If you do not have it, we are certainly in a position 

9 to make 1t available to you. 

10 Mr.Vermeire. That off-the-record testimony would not 

11 be contemporaneous. It is a recollection of what that was? 

12. Mr. Ryan. This was what was prepared for Mr. Hoover's 

13 use for his off-the-record discussion. 

. 
·14 Mr. Vermeire. It was prepared but as far as the actual 

15 dialogue, that was based upon Mr. DeLoach's recollection? 

16 Mr. Wannall.Mr. Mohro 

l7 Mr. Vermeire. What year was this? 

18 Mr. Wannall .• There·were five or six years. 

19 Mr. Ryan. There were six occasions between 1958 and 

20 1966 which was basically the period of strong activity 

21 in these programs. 

22 Mr. Oliphant. Why was the program·discontinued? 

23 . Mr.Ryan. The program was discontinued in April of 

24 1971 by instructions that were relayed to me from the 

25 then Assistant Director, Charles Brennan. It was my understandin~ 
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· 1 that the program was discontinued at this time based on 

2 the fact that it had been primarily phased out~ There was 

3 a depreciation of the threat and there had been a security 

4 breach in that in March, 1971, our resident agency in 

5 Media, Pennsylvania, was burgl~rized. 

6 Mr. Oliphant. How soon· after the burglary was it dis-
-,-

7 continued? 

8 Mr. Ryan. In March, 1971, the burglary took place 
1' he f-'ti: • • ; A~~ fr.~: """ ~ C".: 

9 and ~;:a;s discontinued effective April 28, 19·71, all counter-

10 intelligence programs. 

11 · Mr. Vermeire. Before the break-in, was t~ere any memo-

12 randa to the effect that the program would be discontinued? 

13 Mr. Ryan. No, I would point out to my own knowledge 

14 that the programs had been literally phased out. In ~orne areas 
¥ti.,_~~ 

. 15 -rb.w· had been completely discontinued formally. 

16 Mr. Oliphant. Which areas were those? 

11 Mr. Ryan. Socialist Workers Party was discontinued 

....k 
18 in 1969, although I understand ~hat that one technique 

19 did not actually phase out until January of the following 

20 year. 

21 Mr. Oiphant. Which technique was that? 

22 Mr. Ryan. I'm not sure. Another·program, one that has 

23 been described as Hoodwink, had long since been 

24 discontued. 

25 Mr. Vermeire. Hoodwink was a short-term program? 
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1 . 
Mr. Ryan. There were four anonymous letters prepared 

2 
under Hoodwink. There were other programs discontinued 

3 
and some in a class.ified area. 

MC 
4 

15 
5 

6 ' 
\ 

'7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15· 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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P.m.. 1 
I 
I 

Mr.i Shackelford. 
i 

I think a point that needs to be made 

2 is that these programs were responses to problems, and as the 

3 problem was diminished, ~he need for the program was diminished 

4 essentially. I don't know if Dave would agree with this, but 

5 the compromise that came out of the Media burglary probably 

6' brought everything into very sharp focus and tipped the balance 
~ 

7 as far as a determination whether it should be continued. 

8 Mr. Ryan. In 1971, the programs, as I indicated 1 vlere 

9 phased down. At that time, the reason I became ~nvolved is 

10 that I had put through a recommendation for a counter-

11 intelligence program type action. I don't remember what it 

12 was and at that time Charles Brennan, the Assistant Director! 
,.., v <",;~;:;;;'f?.d.rv-! 
.., \,.. ..., ~ 

13 turned ~hat down, and at that time questioned the feasibility 

14 of continuing the programs. 

15 I would not doubt that he had cons.ulted with ·other 

16 Bureau officials at the time. 

17 There was some feeling that some portions of these pro-

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

mi 55301 

grams should have been continued, but the threat in most areas 

had phased down to the extent where most of the programs were 

inactive. 

Mr. Vermeire. It seems to me in any of those off-the-· 

- record discussions of the programs by Mr. Hoover with Congress, 

he could not h_ave gone into much d~tail, and the reason I say 

that is because if he did, I don't know how secure that 

Pc:trticular hearing room \vas. I don't know 't>Jhether it was just 
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1 the Congressmen, or whatever. ·But it seems to me that just 

2 that, itself, would somewhat compromise the programs. 

3 I mean once it,gets .out that the FBI might be sending a 

4 certain letter to somebody and saying it is from somebody, you 

5 know, once that kind of thing starts getting out, it seems to 

6~ me you might app~ise the people that activity is going on, and 

·1 it seems to me then the program loses much of its effective-

8 ness. 

9 Mr. Wann~ll. I would say, Mr. Vermeire, that Mr. Hoover di~-

10 cussed the most sensitive operations that we had not just in 

11 the domestic field but in our counter-intelligence areas with 

12. the Committee, and I have no knowledge that there was any 

13 breach of security. 

14 I am inclined to think probably the room was swept prior 

15 to the testimony. 

16' Mr. Ryan. During the years of this testimony before the 

17 House Subcommittee on Appropriations, the public record will 

18 show that Mr. Hoover was highly complimented on his pres·enta-

19 tion and great confidence was expressed in him. I think this 

20 

21 

confidence was justified. 

Ms. Miller. 
t)l:: ..... )f 

Let me ask you ab-~t the tactics that were 

22 considered to be disruptive that were used in the COINTELPRO 

23 program. Would you outline what some of those were? 

24 Mr. Ryan. The tech~iques that were utilized were calculatEd 

25 to curb subversion or violence· .. There was no rulebook of what 
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1 to use. 

2. 

3 

4 

5 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

I 
24 

25 
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When I was involved with the counter-intelligence program, 

my philosophy was that we should primarily endeavor under this 

program -- and it was the Communist Party program -- to 

develop new long-range intelligence or counter-intelligence 

techniques. 

. IN · . 
And I would like to comment~en the Commun1st Party 

program;we did develop such techniques which were unique in 

the area of intelligence and which have evolved into foreign 

intelligence techniques which·I think have become some of the 

more important operations or techniques used in our foreign 

counter-intelligence area in the FBI, and I think that high 

111 e. 
government officials, including~Kissinger, have commen~ed the 

FBI for the information developed as a result of ·techniques 

that evolved out of the counter-intelligence program. 

Ms. ·:Miller. What were some of the techniques? 

Mr.. Ryan. They are highly classified. 

Ms. Miller. What were the techniques under the 

COINTELPRO? 

Mr. Ryan. There were a variety of techniques. There was 

no rulebook of what could be used~ We would consider any 

technique which would neutralize violence-prone or subversive 

organizations. 

Mr. Atkisson. Can you give us some examples, Mr. Ryan? 

Mr. Ryan. A copy of the report of the Department of 

ocld:32989693 Page 101 

I 
{ 

I 
I 

I 
l. 
! 

l 

\ 

I 
! 
I 
I 
I 
! 

l 

i 
l 
\ 



113 

1 I • 
Just~ce study, Committee on FBI COINTELPRO's,~the Petersen 

Committee Report has been made available to you_which endeavored 

3· to put in categories the type techniques used under this pro-

4 gram. 

5 Mr. Atkisson. The prograin was discontinued in 1971.· It 

6' had been largely~phased out, you say, before that, 1970, and 

7 with respect to SWP largely discontinued as early as 1969. 

8 Are the~e any of the techniqu~s outlined in the report 

9 already forwarded to us, any of the techniques that you now 

to have in mind which were continued for any reason vlhatever after 

11 any of those dates -- well, after 1971, with respect to any-

I 

. 12 body; after 1970, with respect to SWP? 

13· Mr. Ryan. I would like to point out that there have been 

14 some efforts by irresponsible elements of the press, by 

15. individuals who for personal reasons ar~ endeavoring to capitalize 

16 on their past association with the FBI, and by individuals who 

17 I would classify ~w as subversives to try to leave the impres­
~¢HJ{(lf1~0 

18 sion that we are still using ~~~~~~B~e~~~geae€-type activi-

19 ties. 

20 Now, in the Petersen report a technique is mentioned, and 

21 that is intervie\ving members. These were interviews that were 

22 authorized for disruptive·purposes. Now we still interview 

23 members of subversive grpups. We don't interview for disrup-

24 tive purposes. 

25 Mr. Oliphant. What about interviewing families or 
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1 employees? 

2. Mr. Ryan. I do not know of any instance where this would. 

3 be done for disruptive purposes. It is possible that the inter-

4 views would be conducted to develop necessary background to 

5 establish identity or to determine the extent of involvement 

6 ' with a subversiv~ group. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Mr. Vermeire. Is disruption a motive, or is it a result? 
/ 

Mr. ' Shackelford. Past or current? 

Mr. Vermeire. Current. I mean, it seems to me --

' 
Mr. ! Shackelford. In other words, if we interview a 

11 person now, what is the motivation of the interview? 

1.2 Mr. Vermeire. I am not sure that is important .~ Because 

13 of the kind of interview and the kind of statements made so 

14 clearly lend themselves to a disruption of some activity or 

15 some it seems to me the motive may not be so important. 

16 Mr. l Shackelford. I think what we are talking about, 

17 we are interviewing a person about their current activities 

18 which are under investigation. They of all people are 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

.24 

25 

certainly aware of their own activities. 

Mr. Vermeire. What about people other than the target? 

Mr.j Shackelford. Like who? 

Mr. Vermeire. Employers, family,· landlords. 

Mr. Oliphant. Co-workers. 

Mr./ Shackelford. I believe you will find those interviews 

aren't normally conducted. You are talking about exceptions. 
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1 Mr. Atkisson. Would it be legitimate post-1971, to 

2 indicate to a third party interviewee, i.e., an employer, let 

us say, that the re~so~ the interview was being conducted was 

4 that the subject of the interview was Communist, or subyersive, 

5 or was in any way dangerous to the United States? 

6' Mr./ Shacke~ford. I would say norrrtally it would not be. 

7 If the employer was engaged in highly se~sitive classified 

8 government contract work, certain~y it could be. 

9 Mr. Atkisson. But if not? 

10 Mr./shac~~iford. If not under normal circumstances, no. 
I • 

11 Mr. Oliphant. Pursuant to that, what would be the purpose 

12. of furnishing to the Civil Service Commission the results of 

13 interviews or the results of information developed that a 

14 person was living with someone no longer her husband or going 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

into their sex life in any way, shape,_ or form? 

Mr .f. Shac~e-lf~rd~ ·- You are raising the same old question. 

Mr. ~yan. I don't know where this is being done. 

·Mr. \shackelford. You keep resurrecting the sex life. I 

don't know what the problem is. Talk specifics, and we will 

20 try to give you an answer. 

2.1 Mr. Atkisson. Specifically, Kathryn Sledge Zaharie, I 

22 guess was the maiden name or marriage hame. There is a letter 

23 sent to the Civil Service Commission. She got a job in a VA ho!=pi-

2.4 tal in Seattle-- I don't have the file in front of me--

25 certainly a non-sensitive job, name check, reported back a lot 
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1 of information about Sv~ activities, and then the fact that· 

2 she is married to a certain person, but living with someone 

3 else .. 

4 Mr. Ryan. Tim, what I would like to suggest you do, if 
.· 

5 you have documentation --

6 Mr. Atkisson.. This is documentation. 

7 Mr. Ryan. let us have the benefit of it, and we will 

a be glad to brief you completely ~n·the circumstances. 

9 Mr. Atkisson. We -vmnt to ask philosophically, if you are 

10 going into that. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

The other thing is we have people --

Mr.\ Shackelford. Let me answer the first question firs.t. 
~ 

Mr. Atkisson. Go.ahead. 

Mr.(~hackelford. The probl~m that arises in a situation 
. ~·- . 

like that, in the normal investigation.of the individual engagec 

in subversive activities, you would get a degree of back-

ground information concerning them, they are married, single, 

u.s. citizen, alien, and the like. 

If the individual, for example, is married or in the case 

that you described, I believe, is living with someone other thar 

a spouse, legal spouse, that· would appear in the normal back-

ground of the investigation, of the person. 

When a namecheck comes in, if that appears in the report, 

which is prepared in connection with the subversive investiga-

tion, it would be sent probably in toto. We do not go through 
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1 normally and excise. That is how it would come about. 

Mr. Atkisson. Let me ask you this: Would people, when 

3 they -were going aro-q.nd, ~.et 's say, investigating specifically 

4 the SWP, speaking with third parties, would it be acceptable 

5 proced~re to say, (a) that they were conducting a subversive 

6' investigation and that the person belonged to an organization 
. ' 

7 which was on the Attorney General's subversive list? This is 

8 in 1972, let's say, or post-1971, at any rate, when the 

9 Attorney General's list for all practical purposes has not been 

10 alive and w.ell since 1956? 

11 Mr. Shackelford. 
l . 

Well, that is your definition of alive 

12. and well. 

13 

14 

Mr. Ryan. I would like to get back to a factual situation 

. 
Mr. Atkisson. Those are allegations. If those allegations 

I 
\ 
i 

I 
15 are true, would that be an acceptable technique? 

16 Mr. Ryan. I would like to deal with facts and avoid 

17 allegations, if we could. r 
18 Mr. Atkisson. Would. that be acceptable? 

19 Mr. Ryan. We will resolve individually any allegation 

2.0 you want to present to us. The facts are that the Petersen 

21 Committee Report, which thoroughly studied these programs, 

22 found, and I think you will find under Category 12 of the 

23 Report, that the FBI as a COINTELPRO action during the period 

24 1956 to 1971 in only thirty instances informed others of 

25 
immoral activity on the part of a member of a subversive group 
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I 

1 or 'extremist. 

2 To emphasize how little this was done and how this is 

3 being distorted, I would point out there were only two 

4 instances of such activities in the Communist Party pr?gram out 

~ of 1,388. So you are talking- about a very minute area which 

6 I think is distr~cting you from what your charter is, to find 

7 areas of possible abuse. This is so minute. 

8 Mr. Atkisson. We are talkin~ .about post-1971. I am ask-

9 ing is that acceptable? As a basic thing, is it ·acceptable to 

10 interview third parties now regarding, let's say, people 

11 specifically within the SWP, to ask them abouttheir where-

12 abouts, do they live here, landlords, and that sort of thing? 

13 Mr.\ Shackelford. The answer to that is yes. But you do 

14 not furnish information. You solicit information. You must 

15 . qualify it in that regard. 

16 Mr. Atkisson. In the course of that investigation is it 

17 acceptable to reveal why you are investigating the person? 

18 · Mr.\ ~~~ckelford. 
l_.. . 

Not normally. Again, I have to qualify 

19 it, because I don't know the specific incident or the specific 

20 ·third party, or what the circumstances are. 

21 Mr. Atkisson. That is reasonable, but not normal --

22 Mr.\ _ _?hackelford. Again, the basic guidelines of the agent 

23 
is he obtained information; he does not give information. 

24 
Mr. Atkisson. That is what one would think. 

25 
Mr. Ryan. Some of thes~ allegations you mention that are 
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1 coming out now are raised for one basic reason, and it is quite 

obvious, t~ curtail our investigative responsibilities. There 

3. are some people obviously who do not want to be investigated. 

4 Mr. Vermeire. I don't want to be investigated. I don't 

~ know anybody that does. 

6 Mr. WannalJ\ I don't know what the Privacy Act, how that 

7 will impact on our conducting interviews very frankly. We 

8 have not yet received all of the ,guidelines that are neces-

9 sary. You mentioned someone employed in the government and 

10 mention was made in the late sixties of the Attorney 

11 General's list. Under 10450, the Executive Order having to do 

12 with security of government employees, we do have responsibili-

13 ties to furnish information to other agencies. While there 

14 is no updating of that list from about the mid-SO's, the list 

15 was in existence until about a year and_ a half ago, and I can 

16 well understand our furnishing information to the Civil 

17 Service Commission, where mention is made of the ·Attorney 

18 General's list. That would have been a normal procedure. 

t9 I don't know if this ties in with the facts that you have 

20 or not, but there is no question in my mind that we would have 

21 furnished Civil Service information, information if a person 

. 22 was employed by Civil Service, or Agriculture, if he was 

23 employed by Agriculture, and normally Civil Service would 

24 conduct the investigation unless it got into an area of rather 

25 extensive activities, and it would be referred to us for 
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. 
1 security government employees' investigation. 

2 Mr •. Vermeire. If I can go on, Mr. Wannall,this is 

3 gotten from an FBI qocument. COINTELPRO document labeled 

4 Black Extremists, and I direct this question to Mr. Wanna11·. 
r 

5 In 1969, Ralph Ab~rnathy, · at the time he j ·ust succeeded 

Martin .Luther King as head of the SCLC, was preparing to give 
• 

7 an informative speech at a church in Pittsburgh regarding the 

8 upcoming elections -- I believe it was 1968 and not 1969. 

9 A letter was sent, an anonymous letter, to the pastor 

of that church, which contained certaiLl allegations that Mr . 

11 Abernathy had been involved in certain sexual molestations of 

12. a fifteen-year-old girl. 

.13 In God's name, how does this apply to your justification 

14 for COINTELPRO ac-tivities? Here is a man giving a political 

15· informative speech to people at a church and here is the FBI, 

16 and this procedure was approved by headquarters, approved a 

17 
procedure whereby such kind of information is sent to that 

18 church. 

19 How can you justify that kind of an action? 

2.0 Mr. Wannall, I am sitting here today trying to justify 

21 
something that occurred under a policy which was established 

22 and approved by Mr. Hoover --

23 
Mr. Vermeire. I am not putting any individual blame on 

2.4 
this, but I would like your viewpoint on that kind of pro-

25 
cedure. Would you have approved this kind of procedure had you 
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1 be~n in that position to do so in 1968? Would you have 

l approved that kind of a technique? 

3 Mr. Wannall. W~ll, I am getting into theory, naturally. 

4 You are asking me what I would have done. I don't know. I don t 

5 know. I certainly \~:ould not approve it today. I can· answer 

6 : that question. -
' 

7 Mr. Oliphant. What would be different between now and 

8 then? 

9 Mr. Wannal I don't knmv all the circumstances surround-

tO ing the investigation of Abernathy. I wasn't involved; I have 

11 no background on him. I don't know what the files shmv. 

12 Mr. Vermeire •. We had received information at a briefing 

13 that Ralph Abernathy was not under investigation by the FBI. 

14 lve know his predecessor was. We won't get into tha't. 

15 Mr. Ryan, do you care to comment on that? Are you familia 

16 with the d·ocument in question? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

i 25 
[ NW _ 55~01 

Mr. Ryan. Just generally. I don't question the document 

was approved. I would like to point out anothe+ technique 

that I reviewed --

Mr. Vermeire. No, but I am interested in this one. 

Mr. Ryan. which is basic to this one, I believe. 

There was an individual who vms a member of a Black 

Extremist group who obtained a job as a schoolteacher. This 

individual had been convicted for molesting children. He was 

a schoolteacher. The FBI furnished this information to a 
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1 local police department, and this individual was discharged 

Z from his posi t .).on. 

g "'. Mr. Vermeire. Do you think that is analogous.? 

4 Mr. Ryan. I do. 

s· Mr. Vermeire. SCLC is not an extremist organizatlcn.< 

6 : Mr. Ryan. Well, you are reaching an area of great sensi-

7 tivity based on our interest in Abernathy's predecessor, and it 

8 is an area where I think if you want to approach into it, you 

9 should do so with some caution out of respect to dead people. 

10 Mr. Vermeire. I certainly am not bringing out any of the 

11 material vis-a-vis Martin Luther King, if that is what you are 

12 getting at. 

13 Mr. Ryan. I don!t care to bring-that out 

14 Mr. Vermeire. I don't either. . .. 

15 

16 Mr. V~rmeire. I wasn't asking for that. 

17 Mr. Ryan. But this is an individual who was the number 

18 one. associate of Nartin Luther King in this time frame. 

19 Mr. Vermeire. I understand the FBI, and am familiar with 

2.0 the FBI interest in Martin Luther King and SCLC, but here is 

2.1 a time when he was dead; the SCLC at that particular ·time was 

22 not considered an extremist organizat~on, as I understand it, 

2.3 
and that kind of information was disseminated, and I just don't 

24 
think it is analogous to the .case you gave me. 

25 
Mr. Ryan. I won't comment whether or not we should do it. 
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f I ~on't know. I will comment, if you were the minister and you 

2 had a daughter,you might have been interested in that informa-

3 tion. 

4 Mr. Vermeire. The point is the man was there to speak on 

5 educating people in the church 'tvi th respect to elections • .: 

6: There were Black populace in the church. .It was. an upcoming 

7 election. I won't dwell on it. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Are you, familiar vli th the case of Father Taylor in Ohio? 

Mr. Ryan. These are areas -- there were 3,208 proposals 
2-SJ.i.O 

in this program, some ~~~® approved. We would be glad to 

discuss the specific ones if we had a chance to review the 

' 
12 circumstances. 

13 Mr. Atkisson. That is one of the purposes of bringing 

14 it up now. 

15 Mr. Wannalf We will go over the record thoroughly. 

16 Mr. Vermeire. And also look into Father Taylor, that come 

11 under the Black Extremist COINTELPRO; okay? 

18 Ms •. Miller. Probably Mr. Wannallcan answer this: The 

19 memo which announced the fact that COINTELPRO would be dis-

20 ·continued said that certain actions would be authorized on a 

21. selective basis. 

22 Mr. .Shackelford. No; it didn't:· It said any proposed 

23 action: should be submitted under the individual case captions. 

24 It didn't say would be approved, as I recall that document. 

25 Ms. Miller. Okay; but it gave instructions to the field 
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1 office, if they felt the case was warranted, that disruptive 

2 actions could be undertaken. 

3:. Mr. Shackelford. It said to submit the recommendations 

4 ~nder the individual case captions. 

. 
Ms: Miller. My ·question is, have there been any'disrup-

6~ tive activities approved since 1971? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

t 1 

12. 

13 

1'4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

\ 

Mr. Ryan. If I may respond to that, at the instructions 

of Mr. Wannal~, I surveyed the entire :Intelligence \idivision 

earlier this year to determine if anybody in the lntelligence 

@ivision had any knowledge of any COINTELPRO-type activity 

that had been au~horized after April 28, 1971, and this survey 

was negative with one exception; that one agent spoke about 

a misinformation technique in the fore1gn counter-intelligence 

area, and he thought that maybe somebodylffiight consider this 

as a COINTELPRO-type activity. 

I reviewed this technique and found that it was exclusivel' 

in the foreign intelligence area and was not of a COINTELPRO 

+-~.~ 
nature in t:b±s. context we are discussing. · 

However, in connection with various reviews which we have 

conducted and are continuing to conduct, we have discovered tha 

there were two recommendations submitted for counter-

intelligence action in February of 1912. One of these related 

to the Black Extremist field and involved the furnishing of a 

newspaper clipping from an extremist newspaper anonymously to 

the headquarters of an extremist group. 
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1 The other, I believe, was in what could be called the 

2 White-hate field and involved furnishir1g information to an 

3 individual affiliated with a news media organization of a 

4 factual nature. 

5 These two instances we have reported to the Attorney '\ _ 

6: General. These were approved after the 1971 concluding date o.f 

. 7 the programs . 

8 Mr. Wannall. May I add one more thing to that, please? 

9 The communication to vlhich you refer I indicating that if there 

10 should be any further recommendations for COINTELPRO-type 

11 actions, they should be submitted under the case file, I was 

12 not involved in the co~nunication. I have given consideration 

13 to this. Some of the COINTELPRO actions were in the counter-

14 intelligence area, and I would specifically refer to some that 

15 were conducted against the Communist Party. 

16 I want it to be very clearly understood that in our 

17 foreign counter-intelligence activities, we engage in activi-

18 ties that you might classify as a COINTELPRO-type activity. As 

t9 an example, if through an anonymous mailing we could surface 

20 an intelligence officer of a hostile foreig~ intelligence ser-

21 vice, we would do it. 

22 So when we are talking about COINTELPRO, I want to be 

23 sure we are talking about the activities in our domestic field 

24 which are under criticism, and th~re are certainly valid 

25 
questions that have to be asked and responded to to the best 
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t of ;our ability. 

2 Mr~ V~rmeire. Mr. Wannall,the justification that we were 

3 given by the B:ureau~ for example, for the Burea~'s . not 

4 divulging the identity of informants, why those names are 

5 excised in various documents, is, and I think it is a valid 

justification, that if we compromise informants, their identity 

7 D.nd so forth, that we are putting informants 1 because of the 

8 very nature of being an informant, we are putting an informant 

9 in an extremely untenable and dangerous position, . i .. e., he is 

10 subject to possibly physical harm or even death at the hands 

11 of the people he has been informing on. 

12 Is that a fair characterization of one of the justifica-

13 tions for not turning over informants, aside from the other 
. 

14 . theory of the Burea~ not breaching its confidentiality? 

15 
Mr. Wannal~. That is part of it. It does go further. We 

16 
have had persons who have ·cooperated \vith us in the past in our 

17 
foreign counter intelligence areas who have come to us and 

18 
said 1 "I am discontinuing my cooperation because in two 

19 weeks, two years, or three years, I will read my name in the 

20 newspaper." 

21 
There has been a measurable effect on our ability to carry 

22 
out responsibilities in our counter-intelligence field as a 

23 
result · of the revelation of informants. 

24 
Mr. Vermeire. I understand that. I wasn't questioning 

25 
the justification. That was a preface to my next question. 

NW 5301 ocld: 32989693 Page 11 'i --

"\ 

i 

I 
I· 
I 



a .~ ., '\ 

·~ 1 Given the reason for not giving us the names of the 

127 

2 informants, how do you square it with some of the COINTELPRO 

3 activities, whereby_you actively subjected people to this kind 

4 of threat, this kind of potential for harm? In other words, we e 

5 you told X, who was in a position of importance or power in 

6 : a Black extremist group, for example, the Black Panther policy, 

7 you told X that Y was an informant andY, being also a member 

8 of the party_, telling other members of these groups falsely 

9 that people within the group were informants? 

10 Wasn't this really subjecting these people to the likeli-

11 hood or risk that they would face severe chance of physical 

-12 harm? 

13 Mr. Ryan. The Bureau was very much aware of this possi-

14 bility. I think what you are talking about was a proposal 

15 which was specifically turned down on the basis that it could 

16 jeopardize an individual's life. If this one was not turned do\n, 

17 there were others that were turned down. 

18 .I would also like to point out to you that this Bureau, 

19 · in the case of an extremist organization on the West Coast, 

20 where a second extremist organization in competition had a 

21 contract out to kill the leaders of the first group, this Burea 

22 alerted these extremists to the fact that their life was in 

24 Mr .• Oliphant. Mr. Ryan~ there are COINTELPRO things 

25 
approved, Bureau documents, not allegations, where exactly the 
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>- 1 tactic which Mr. Vermeire was referring to was used, and then 

2 under the section which dealt with results, it said, "Subject 

3 fled the area." 

Mr. Ryan. .Without going into specifics, I can say that in 

5 my survey of these programs -- and I have been involved for 

6. some period in surveying -- I have uncovered no instance where · 

physical harm resulted to any individual --

8 Mr. Oliphant. We are talking about the risk. How do you 

9 justify the risk on that? 

10 Mr. Shackelford. Let me answer that, if I may. You are 

11 trying to compare subjects engaged in extremist activity, high 

12 level of violence, and our responsibilities, if you will, to 

13 that person and comparing it specifically with our responsi-

14 bilities to a person who is willing to engage in a relationship 

15 with these people at great risk to himself, considerable hard-

16 ship for the .Bureau and the government, and I propose that the e 

is a considerable difference in the FBI's responsibility to tho~e 

18 two different people. 

19 Mr. Oliphant. You are saying subjecting these people to 

20 violence and they deserve this and yet --

21 Mr. Shackelford. I didn't say that. 

22 Mr. Oliphant. That is the impli'ca tion. 

23 Mr. Snackelfo·rd. I said you are comparing those two as 

24 

25 

being like circumstances. I propose they are not like 

circumstances as far as the Bureau's responsibilities to them. I 
m 55301 Docld:32989693 Page 117 
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t Mr. Wannall. I would have to say that sitting here now and 
t 
I 

2 looking back on some of the . activities that were carried out, 

s they could be classified as improprieties. I don't think 

there was any effort from anything that I have been told or 
~ 

5 anything that I have s~en myself on the part of the Bureau to 

subject individuals to violence. 
' 

7 I don't know the specific cases or case that you have in 

8 mind, and if · you have a case in m~nd, and we can review the 

9 circumstances, we will be more than glad to give you as much 

10 information as is available with regard to it. 

11 Mr. Ver.meire. Mr. Wannal~,about three weeks ago, you 

12 recall Congressman McClory and a few of_us had a briefing with 

you involving national security wiretaps and some break-

14 ins, and I would just like to put on the record some questions . 

15· with respect to that hearing. 

16 
Why don't we take a few minutes' break w~ile I collect my 

17 
thoughts? 

18 
(Brief recessJ 

19 
Mr. Vermeire. Mr. Wannall,on October 10, as I referred 

20 
to before, there was a briefing with Congressman McClory, 

21 
yourself, ana other members of the FBI, members . of this staff, 

22 
and I am not going to go through my record·s of that entire 

23 
briefing, but I am going to touch on a few of the things 

24 
brought up there. 

25 
At the time of the District Court for the Eastern District 
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1 of Michigan decision that is referred to by a lot of names, 

2 McKees~ d~cision for one, I believe in the Spring of 1972 you 

3 said -- I am sure mpst people are familiar with the decision, 

4 but in the decision of Justice Powell, one of the things.he 

5 said, in trying to lay down sum:~ kind of standard or criteria -< 

6' for what is a domestic organization as opposed to a foreign 
' 

7 organization -- of course the strictures and the decision by 

8 that court said that no electronic surveillance could be done 

9 on a domestic organization even in the interest of national 

10 security. 

11 A lot of questions, of course, by that decision were not 

12 answered. But I want to cite one particular quote from 

13 Justice Powell, and then ask you a question on it. 

14 It says, "Although we attempt no precise definition, we 

15 use the term 'domestic organization' in this opiniqn to mean. 

16. a group or organization whether formally or informally 

.11 constituted, composed of citizens of the United States which 

18 has no significant connection with a foreign pow~r, its agents 

19 or agencies. 
.I 

20 

21 

"No doubt there are cases where it will be difficult to 

distinguish ~etween domestic and foreign unlawful activity I 
22 directed qgainst the government of the United States where 

'23 there is collaboration of varying degrees between domestic 

24 roots' organization and agents-or agencies of.foreign powers, 

J 25 

55301 

but this is not such ·a case. 11 
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• 
1 In your opinion, then, does this leave it up to you on a 

2 case-by-case basis and based on the facts of each- case, to 

3 determine what is a,domestic organization and ~hat isn't? 
.· 

- . 
4 In other words, that allo\vs a lot of flexibility, and how. is 

5 the FBI attempting to meet the mandate of this decision? 

6 ' Obviously Congress has a mandate from this decision, also, 
' 

< 

7 and that is that Congress should enact positive legislation 

8 whereby these standards are set o~t. Hopefully that will be 

9 the result of these committees, but presently how is the FBI 

10 implementing this decision? 

11 Mr. Wanall. Every electronic surveillance in the national 

12 security area, aside from Title 3, has ~o be personally 

13 approved by the Attorney Ageneral, and he is the ultimate 

14 judge as to \'lhether there is a significant foreign connection. 

15 We furnish him factual information, and if we feel that there 

16 is such a connection, we will recommend to him that he 

17 authorize it. He makes the determination. 

_18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

s 24 
.m. 

25 
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Mr. Vermeire. Do you feel that it would be workable 

that a selected magistrate, a federal judge in a selected 

area, perhaps the ~~strict Court in Wash~ngton, should have 

some powers somewhat commensurate to the omnibus crime 

provisions under Title III whcr~ at some future time all 

future security wire taps should be viewed in camera by a 

;:1ember of the Judiciary, in other words,·· by someone outside 

the Executive Branch of the Government? 

Mr. Wannall. I think this is one of sever·al solutions 

that can be consider~d . ... You are talking in terms of having 

one specific judge. 

~t /flR :'{U~t'~\Cll~~ ~ li · · That is o~~- ~~-~he alternatives, The 

reason I say one judge is that you are cutting down the risk 

of disclosure, not that anyone imputes any member of· the 

Judiciary of those kind of actions. 

vJ f1tVI.~1!/ 
Mr. Ver.me:ire. No, I wouldn·'t impute that either and I 

would not raise the question based on that. The basis for 

my . question was one individual who would become s~fficiently 

knowledgeable with regard to counterintelligence or foreign 

intellig~nce needs. That expertise does exist within the 

Executive Branch. It terminates with the Attorney General 

who has th~.power and authority and exercises it, to call 

on various officials in the Executive Branch, at the 

Presidential appointee level for input and approval 

I think the procedures he has established, and I'm not 
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1 at all sure they are final because h~ still has them under 

.2 consid~ration, probably have controls built in that might 

3 be more secure than having one individual with that 

4 authOJ;i t~ 

5 Mr. Ve.rmeire. Mr. Wannal! you stated that on the date 

6: of the Keith decision, there were ten electronic surveillances 

7 operating in the domestic intelligence area. 

8 Mr. Wannall. I think I said less than ten. 

9 Mr. Vermeire. Excuse me, I misread. One o.f the 

10 critic ism, and I'm not saying that I espouse tq that in any 

11 way, but oned the criticisms, and whether it was valid or 

12 not, I don't know, of the late Director was that before he 

13 't·lOuld go into a particular Congressional hearing he would cut 

. 
14 X number of wiretaps or X number of microphonic surveillances 

15 and then testify, truthfully, of course, the next day or week, 

16 that there were only X number of wiretaps operating at that 

17 timeo 

18 My question is, was this number drastically ~educed 

19 before the Keith decision, or was this number iess than 

20 ten somewhat consistent for a long period of time preceding 

21 the Keith decision? 

22 Mr. Wannall. I have not conducted a study on that 

23 
specific question 1 but I have conducted a study with regard 

24 
to the statements made that prior to his testimony Mr. Hoover 

25 
would order a cutback on wiretaps. 
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1 I will be very happy to furnish the results of that 

2 study to you which I think tends to refute the allegation. 

3 Mr. Vermeire. . But you have no knowledge \'lith respec.t 

4 to the electronic surveillance, domestic electronic surveillanc~s 

5 
,. 

at ttc time of the Keith decision. You have no knowledge how 

long that figur~ existed? 

7 Mr. Wannall. No, I don't. I have no reason to believe 

8 that there was a cutback because of the impending decisicn 

9 of the S.u.preme Court. 

10 I think possibly we have records which might be relevant 

11 with respect to that. I would be more than happy to have such 

12 ) : 
records reviewed because we, I think, can reconstruct ;~ ·r i' ;~ 

number of electronic surveillances we had at a given date. 

14 Would you consider it relevant to figure how many we had as 

15 of June 19 as opposed to what date prior to that? 

16 Mr. Oliphant. I don't mean to interrupt, but on that 

17 specific point I understand that the Senate made a request 

18 where they tried to find·every time the Director ~as going 

19 to speak on this subject of electronic surveillances and 

20 they asked for a list, I think ten days before and ten 

21 days afterwards. Maybe I am mistaken, but I heard this 

22 information from someone. 

23 Do you know as a result of that if that showed any 

24 significant variance? 

25 Mr. Wannall. I have said before that the study did not, 
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L_. - · e e 
toj my recollection, sho\'7 any significant variance. 

2. Mr. Vermeire. You also said in 1974 there were 140 

3 national security wiretap targets in the United States, 

4 is that correct? 

5 Mr. Wannall. That figure I was using came from information 

6 ; which had been compiled in a letter by the Attorney General 
. ~ 

7 and addressed to Senator Kennedy. I think the let~er was 

8 dated June 24, 1975. That did in fact reveal the total 

9 number of wiretaps conducted during the year 1974. I will 

10 have to amend a bit. I don't recall whether the 148 were 

11 the number of targets or the number of wiretaps. 

12 I think 148 represented the number of targets. There 

13 would be variation because if we had a'wiretap on an 

14 individual and he moved that would be one target, but we 

15 would count it as two wiretaps • . so there would be a variance 

16 between 14.8 and some figure above that. 

17 

ts 

t9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Mr. Vermeire. You used the term "trespass." What 

do . you mean by trespass_? . Do you consider a trespass a break-in., 

Mr. Wannall.I think there are varying degrees of trespass. 
~i·~'P.r-:J 
~&y are really legal determinations involved. I consider · 

a breaking and entering a trespass if that is the question 

you are propounding. 

Mr. Oliphant. What would you consider an entrance 

that was not a break-in, but was an entrance in which 

a tradesman or some third party friendly to the Bureau made 

' I 
i 
l 
l 

I 
I 

t. 

fi 

I 

I 
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an entrance for one reason or another or someone disguised 

.2 as a tradesman who was involved in the Bureau which would 

3 not be a break-in, but they got in under false pretenses, 

·-
4 let's say. 

5 Mr. Wannall. I really am not qualified because you do 

6 ; have legal questions involved in that. I think a lot would 

--·-
.7 depend upon the degree of relationship between the person 

8 making the entry and the person requesting an entry be made; 
. . 

9 was there an agency relationship? 

to Mr. Oliphant. Were there instances made where third 

' 
11 parties, not bureau personnel, entered premises to 

12 install electronic surveillance equipment or facilitate the 

13 installation of the same? 

14 Mr. Wannall. I have no personal knowledge with ·regard 

15 to this at all. I would anticipate that there were some. 

16 I don't know. You say were there a number. 

1.7 Mr. Oliphant. Were there any? 

18 Mr. Wannall. I · would . say there probably were some where .:the 

19 individual making the entry was completely unwitting. I 

20 have in mind, for example, the placement of a listening 

21 device in a telephone. The employee of the telephone 

22 company who installed the instrument would not even be 

23 aware of the fact there was a listening device on the 

24 
telephone. 

25 
Mr. Oliphant. In other words, the listening device 

55301 ocid:32989693 Page 125 
L 

··, 
"( ~ 

1 

l 
' ! 

I 
\ 

t 
' 

...... 

I 



1 

.. 2 

3 

4 
.. 

5 

6; 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I 
I 

137 

had been installed before installation in a telephone 

and he was givE.:.::n that telephone to install. Is that correct? 

Mr. Wannall.I 'suggest this is a possibility. · 

Mr. Oliphant. Have there been instances where Bureau 

personnel haye entered under the guise of being something 

other than Bureau personnel to wit, tradesmen or whatever, 

to make an installation? 

Mr. Wannall.I don't know. 

Mr. Oliphant. Have you read in your review of the files 

or have you been told in the course of your business that 

this took place? 

Mr. Wannall.Where an agent disguised as a tradesman would 

-
go into the area for the purpose of installing a microphone? 

Mr. Oliphant. Or facilitating the installation,~yes. 

Mr. Wannall. For example, looking over the premises to 

determine if an installation might be·made. 

Mr. Oliphant. I suppose so, yes. 

Mr. Wannall.I have heard of instances of that sort. I 

cannot recall specifics but I think this technique has been 

utilized. 

·. · ·Mr. Vermeire. Also brought out at that briefing was 

the question of break-ins. I believe you stated at that time 

that there were break-ins that did occur from 1965 to 1974. 

I think that is tpe period of time. We set down a ten-year 

. . . k R . . 
per~od of t~me. I th~n you said the beeak-~n of the off~ces 
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of· an Al-Fatah contact. You went into some de~ail., how 
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the entry was made and the hardware used at the same time 

to see if it could be operable and the authority was obtained 

by the Attorney General to utilize microphonic surveillance 

in that situation. I think the other situation. you said .: 

6. is that there were a number of break-ins that did occur 

j with.respect to illegal Soviet agents in the United States. 

8 Now, considering that one instance of the Al Fatah ani 

9 the instances of break-ins involving Soviet agents, illegal 

10 Svoiet agents in the United States, were there any other 

11 break-ins aside from them conducted by the FBI? 

12 Mr. Wannall. During the period of '65 to '75? 

13 Mr. Vermeire. Yes, the ten-year period. 

. 
14 Mr. Wannall. Mr. Hoover ordered no further surreptitious 

15 entries in · July, 1966. There is an overlap of a year-there. 

16 I don't haye personal knowledge, but there is a possibility 

17 there were because the technique was utilized until it was 

18 di~continued by Mr. Hoover, the technique of surr~ptitious 

19 
entry. 

20 Mr. Vermeire. In other words, post-1966 under no conditio~s 

21 
.would there be any break-ins,not even of illegal Soviet 

22 
agents? 

23 
Mr. Wannall. Yes. In our counterintelligence area 

24 
there were. We determined as a result of a field-wide 

POfli(. !! :'"If. 

25 
survey that there was oneAafter July 1966 when Mr. Hoover 
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. 1 , said the technique should be discontinued. 

Mr. Vermeire. Which one was that? 

3 Mr. Wannal1. I would have to refresh my memory. It 

4 involved, as I recall, the Communist Party, USA. It was 

5 probably in about 1967 or 1968. There was no record of it 

6; in our headquarters, but our New York office did have a 

7 notation on a serial in the file that a telephone call had 

8 been placed to headquarters and approval granted to make 

9 the entry for the purpose not of taking something: av1ay 

10 but for the purpose of photographing mdterial on the 

11 premises. 

12 Mr. Oliphant. Were the-re any surreptitious entries against 

13 the Socialist Workers Party? 

14 Mr. Wannall. There have been, yes. 

15 Mr. Oliphant. Up until what date? 

16 Mr. Wannall. I don't know the date. Do you? 

17 Mr. Shackelford. I cannot speak factually but I 

18 would generally say up to the '66 date. They could have 

19 terminated before that. I have no first hand knowledge . . 

20 Mr. _Oliphant. After that date, Mr. Shackelford, were 

21 there any surreptitious entries performed, not by Bureau 

22 personnel, _but at the behest of the Bureau; in other words, 

23 through the use of informants or through the use of people 

24 who were friendly to the Bureau? 

25 
Mr. Wannall. After 1966? 
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1 Mr. Oliphant. That is right. 

Mr·. Wannall. Our study has revealed none. 

3 Mr. Oliphant. What is the policy o~ the B~reau, 

·4 if the Bureau is conducting an investigation regarding, let's 

5 say, a subversive organizatior1 and let's say not q. foreign 

6 , organization, not a Soviet organization, and the Bureau 

7 is presented with information \'lhich would appear to be 

8 the result of something which was taken from an organization. 

9 I refer specifically, let's say, to internal docu.rnents and 

10 that sort of thing, which are not for public consumption, 

11 not pamphlets and things like that, and the Bureau is in 

' 

12 receipt of that. 

13 What is the position of the Bureau with that? 

14 Mr. Wannall. I think 'if the documents clearly 

15 indicated they came from such a source, our policy would be 

not to accept tft>.~m. 

t7 I cannot say, with some 8,000 men out in the field, 

18 th~t they would not be accepted. But I can tell ¥OU this, 

19 if they were accepted and we learned about it,· the agent 

20 would be subjected to severe disciplinary action. He would 

21 
put himself in a position of having something he could not 

i ' 

22 use because he would know good and well he was in possession 

23 
of something that would do him no good and he dare not report 

24 
to headquarters. 

25 
Mr. Vermeire. Do you have any estimation of the total 
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• .e 
number ~f bre~-ins conducted by the FBI prior to 1966? 

Mr. Wanna11. Prior to 1966 there has been a·figure of 

24.8. I think that is ·the precise figure. I do not know 

where that figure came from. · I would have to go back to 

the man that I have assigned t~ this particular area to 

verify if we in fact can say we made 248. 
\ 

Mr. Vermeire. Out of those 248, how many of those break-

ins were conducted on American citizens? 

Mr. l;annall. I don't know. T do know that we had either 

14 or 17 targeks of domestic organizations. 
r 

There were numerous surreptitious entries in the 

case of some of those organizations which runs the figure 

up much higher than the total number of targets. 

Records we~e not maintained. The system was devised. 

I think perhaps we had talked about this before, that if 

the recommendation was made it was made a record in our 

field office file after authorization. It was maintained 

for ~ year because we have an inspection of each of our 

. offices each year and the inspector has access to everything. 

If he found in th~ files information that was unaccounted 

for, the special agent in charge could say "Here is my 

authorization." After that process, .the record was 

destroyed. 

Mr. Ryan. If I could add to Mr. Wannall's comment, 

you mentioned domestic b~eak-ins on u. s. citizens. 
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In the overwhelming majority, in my estimation of so-

. 
called surreptitious entries of u. s. citizens or 

domestic groups there was evidence .of forei9n. influence 

o.r control. 

Mr. Atkisson. What in any of your views were the attribut~s 

an individual citizen had to have to qualify for ADEX . 

in the course of its existence? 

Mr. Wannall. 
Ar• ····.4' 1<,.· ~,, 
~ exists today. 

Mr. Atkisson. I am asking if it has changed. Let'£:. 

ask today. What attributes would I have to have to be 

listed on ADEX? 

Mr. Wannall. You would have to represent what we 

considered to be a current threat to the security o£ the 

country. ... 

Mr. Atkisson. Is association alone with any group, 

no matter pow dangerous, association alone enough to 

qualify me for that elite group of people? 

Mr. Wannall. No. 

Mr. Atkisson. Has that been the · case throughout the 

existence of ADEX? 

Mr. Wannall. Throughout the existence of ADEX. 

Mr. Atkisson. I know the difference between the 

security list and the other. 

Mr. Wannall. There Has the custodial list and the 

security list and ADEX. The ADEX was established on the 

NW 55301 ~ocid:32989693 Paqe 131 

I 
I 
l 
! 

I 
l 
i 
I 
I 
I 
l 
i 

I 



143 

· 1 · authority of the Department. We had about 15,000 people 

2 who.were on the discontinued security index which was set up . 

3 under Title II of the Internal Security Act of 1950. 

4 I mentioned earlier that we took a look at everybody on 

5 that list with criteria- whic:h ~.rould have included membership 

6· in certain .organizations in order to determine the extent 

7 of what had been considered before the potential threat. 

8 Once we had gone through that, we said there was no basis 

9 for maintaining a list as such. We are interested in on-going 

10 continuous in:vestigations of .indi vidual.s who we feel represent 

11 a current threat to the security of the country . So we have 

12 cases, something around 123~ on-going investigations, which 

13 are r~vievled every 90 days to determine· if the . person 1 s 

14 activities have changed. If they have changed, we close the 

15 case, if that is ~·.arran ted, or we discontinue an intensified 

16 investigation. 

17 The ADEX has nothing to do with whether or not we end 

18 
· the investigation of an individual. 

19 Mr. Atkisson. I understand that. Let me ask you with 

20 specific reference to SWP, is membership in SWP enough 

21 
to qualify somebody to be listed? 

22 Mr. Wannall. No. 
I 

23 
Mr. Atkisson. ts active membership enough to qualify one 

to be listed on ADEX? 
24 \ 

25 
Mr. Wannall. No .. ·? 
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•1 Mr. Oliphant. The 90-day check, has that-been lived 

z up to since the inception of ADEX? 

3 Mr. Wannall. Yes. 

4 Mr. Oliphant. Off the record. 

5 (uiscussion off the record.) 

6 · 
\ 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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1 
e 

With the caveat of not saying I believe 

I 
this at all, this allegation was made. 

~ ~ \ 

3 Mr. Wannall) 'The-~ was an allegation mac;le. that as recentl 

as the early 1970's·· there were in the· ·possession of someone 

5 in the Bur~au warrants that were signed but were not filled 
r. 

6 in, so that in the case of national emergency or something 

7 
people could be ~apprehended summarily. Is there any truth 

8 
at all to that allegation? 

9 
Mr. Wannall. Yes. 

10 
Mr. Oliphant. Could you explain? 

11 
Mr. Wannall. Yes. Under the Internal Security Act of 

12. 
1950, Title II,congress decreed that there should be an 

13 
emergency detention progra111 'I.·Ihi.J:;& would be invoked by the ../' 

14 
President in the event of a national emergency or ho?tilities. 

15 
The Attorney General had a portfolio with directions as to 

16 
what should be done, even to the extent of arranging for 

17 
detention sites, transportation of individuals, certain 

t8 
criteria applicable to aliens, other criteria applicable to 

19 
citizens because there would have to be a suspension of the 

2.0 
writ of habeas corpus in order for such a program to be 

21 
invoked. As a result of that, we were called upon to compile 

22. 
lists of individuals who actually could be grabbed off the 

2.3 
street and detained in the event of an emergency. I might 

2.4 
add that this ·was an impetus for snrreptitious en·tries to gain 

knowledge with regard to members of organizations, principally 
2.5 
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1 · the Communist Party. The criteria for placing a person on 
.. 

2 this list, which was called a security index, was submitted 

3 to the Department of Justice and the Attorney General, either 

4 said "I agree with it", II, I disagree with it", or "I disagree 
"'/: .. .. ~ ~r:JI,l 

5 and here's how you,, charige it." 

6, Three categories were devised. The first category was 
\ 

7 those individuals who would be considered as the principal 

8 threat in the event of a national emergency or hostilities. 

9 A second category was a lesser threat. The third category 

io was persons who, after the first two categories had been dis-

11 posed of, would be looked at more closely and a determination 

12 made as to whether there should be detention. There were 

13 Presidential warrants prepositioned for the purpose of serving 

14 them on aliens. I do not have all the details. I was not 

15 involved in the program but it was my recollection that there 

16 < 

were warrants issued that could-be executed and served upon 

1? citizens upon the declaration of an emergency and a suspension 

18 of the writ of habeas corpus by the President under wartime 

19 or extreme national emergency conditions. 

20 These lists were maintained. Criteria were reviewed 

21 regularly. There were changes made with changing times. Every 

2.2 person who was recommended to be placed on the security index 

23 was the subject of an investigation, a full investigation, the 

24 results of '\<lhich were furnished to the Department and except 

25 
for a very short period in 1955 when funding was not available, 

nw~~5~5=3~o~ .. ~D~o~c=I~d~:3~2~9~8~9~6~9~3~P~a~g~e~1~3~5------------------------------------------------ --
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1 continually through that time judgments were made and decisions 

2 made by departmental attorneys that either the person should 

3 be included on the list or should not be included on the list. 

4 Even during the time of the suspension because of budgeta 

5 problems I think the pe.ople vlhose names came up there wE:r:;; 

6; subsequently reviewed so there was a special unit in the 

7 

·8 

' Department which made a judgment as to whether an individual 

should be included on the index and if so what category. 

I 

\ 
9 I think it :.vas the 15th. day of September, 19 71, that the 

10 legislation was approved repealing Title II of the Internal 

11 Security Act of 1950. On that very day we wrote to the 

12 Attorney General. If you don't mind I will quote a single I 
13 

14 

paragraph· of the letter. 

The Chairman •. Certainly. ·, I 
15 

16 

17. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Mr. Wannall. I was hopeful that I would have a communi-

cation that went to the Attorney General. I don't have it 

with me. It is available if you would like to have it. The 

letter referred to the fact that the Act had repealed the 

emergency detention program and then acknowledged in the 

second paragraph that the Bureau has no basis for maintaining 

a security index and accordingly it has been discontinued. 

I 
l 
I 

J 
~ 

l 
i. 

The question was posed to the Attorney. General as to whether 

23 
the legislation in September of 1971 had any effect, (1), on 

24 
our investigative jurisdiction and (2), whether it would 

25 
preclude our maintaining an index for the purpose of retrieval 
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~ e.\ e 
of.information relating to persons who were under investigation 

I 
in our security area. The reply was, ( 1) , there l'las no 

bearing or impact upon our jurisdictional authority; and (2) , 

th~re was no reason why for administrative purposes, in-house 

use, the FBI could not· maintain a list. ·That is ·w·hen Fe took 

a look at everybody including cases which had been in a 

moratorium status because of an inability to assign manpower 

to investigate them, individuals concerning whom we had no 

information on tpeir activities for perhaps a two-year period. 

Every case was looked at. By October of 1972 we had a little 

over 15,500 people. 

Mr. Oliphant. What number of those would have been.subjec 

to emergency detention? 

Mr. Wannall. None at that time. - .. 

Mr. Oliphant. I understand that but when the legislation· 

came firs~ in September l5, 1971. 

Mr. Wannall. I would have to try, and I don't know if· 

it is available, to find out who were in ·category 1 and 2. 

Mr. Oliphant. Could you give us a ballpark figure 

understanding that it is not conclusive? 

Mr. Shackelford. I couldn't. 

Mr. Ryan. I would say we are taLking in terms of between 

15,000 and 5,000 at that time to be discontinued. The list 
WI\.~ 

~~~~~ considerably reduced. 

Mr. Wannall. I am not in a position to give you a ballpar 

l. ··23

5

01 
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1 .figure. 

. 2 Mr. Oliphant. I think it is important from your point of 

3 view because you don't want to give the impression. that all 

4 15,000 were on it. 

5 Mr. Ryan. The list had been .considerably reduced at the 

6, time. 

.7 Mr. Wannall. You are talking about September 1, 1971, 

8 while this list was still supported by legislat·ion? 

9 Mr. Oliphant. Yes. 

10 Mr. Wann~ll. We took a look at everybody. We opened 

11 cases. There must have been less than 15,000 on the old 

12 Security Index at that time. I should not say that because 
! t,l 

. ')!,[/.'/ 

13 they ~~1 were listed on the Index. There· must have been 

14 15,500, a percentage of whom would not have been scheduled 

15 for detention without further investigative attention. So in 

16 October 1972, the 15,500, at that time on our own we said we 

. 17. were not interested in all these people; we are interested 

18 in persomwho represent a clear, current threat to the security 

19 of .the country. We had the field go through th~ entire number 

. 20 of cases and it was drastically reduced in a very short time 

21 because the first thing we did was cut off the lowest category. 

22 I think that reduced the list by a,ooa or something of that 

23 sort. It immediately cut the list. We didn't even pay any 

24 more attention to them. But I have maintained a very close 

25 watch on it to see the progress downward. The latest figure 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6: 

that I have is 1,238 people as of October 15. Now that means 

that we.have currently active investigations on 1,238 people 

whose activities indicate a current threat. I ~ talking 

about persons who represent a threat to assassinate the 

President, as an example, or ir~aividuals ~lhO have taken action 

or are engaged in ·violence for the purpose of attaining a goal 

I 

I 
.I 

1 
! 

I 

7 

8 

which in their minds is the destruction of the United States 

Government. 

I 

I 

9 Mr. Oliphant. That is the ADEX list? 

10 Mr. Wannall. That is the ADEX. I would like to point 

11 out one thing more. The reason we maintain the list is we are 

12 able on the list to put these people into a specific category. 

13 For example, if this country should by any stretch of the 

14 i~agination go to war with Communist China, there are persons 

1~ on that list who are pro-Soviet in their sympathies. Certainly 

Hi· we would not go out and intensify coverage on the pro-Soviets 

l7 because I am inclined to think that Russia would be most 

te delighted to have the United States go to war with China. 

19 So we have the capability through a list of segmenting persons 

20 pro-Sovi~t, pro-Chinese in categories so that if we should 

21 be called upon at any time to intensify efforts we can target 

22 in the efforts to a category as opposed to the entire 1,238 

23 individuals. 

1nd 24 
vs. 

25 
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• 
Mr. Wannall. The list represents nothing more than an 

2 index to us, a usable administrative tool, and there is 

157 

3 nothing sinister abput it, because each person whose name is 

4 included on the list is a subject of an active investigation 

5 based or .. a statute, whose file is reviewed every ninety days 

(): for determination as to whether he is the type of person that 

7 we. should continue to investigate. 

8 One more point, and I hesitate to make it, because it is 

9 not a completely accurate figure. I had a test-run made last 

10 week to determine if everybody on the ADEX had previously been 

11 on the security index which would be a normal question, per-

12. haps a continuation of something which had existed at the time 

13 of the legislation. This survey was made on the basis as of 

14 October 1, 1971, what file number was being assigned in our 

15 one hundred classification or our 157 classification 

16 Mr. Oliphant. Could you explain what that means? 

t7 Mr. Wannall. It is covered by Section 87 and 122 of the 

18 manual. 

19 What file number at headquarters was being assigned as of 

2.0 October 1, 1971, which would indicate we did not previously 

21 have a 100 or 157 classification case on that individual. 

22 Just above t\.;enty-one percent of the ihdividuals who are on 

2.3 the ADEX now had files opened on them at headquarters after 

2.4 October 1, 1971. Unless we went through and meticulously 

25 reviewed each case, we could not say that that figure is 
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If it should go in any direction, it would probabl ~infallible. 

I 
1 

158 

2. be.up. . .. 
. . 

3 It is just to illustrate that at least one out of every 

4 · five individuals that we .now have indexed on our ADEX was not 

5· on the previous list. .• 

Mr. Atkisson. Let me establish one thing for the record.· 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I was asking before about the qualification to get on the 

ADEX list. You indicated that active membership alone was not 

en9ugh. 

The only question I have, and I would reiterate for the 

l 

I 
I 

11 record that Mr. Shackelford. I gave you a list of some five or 

1.2 six names during a break when we were off the record, all SlVP 

,.., people~ . .... 
14 Have we received or been given access to everytQing in the 

15 Bureau files concerning those individuals? 

16 Mr. Shackelford. Have you received it? 

17 

18 

Mr. Atkisson. We have requested it. Have '\ve receiv0d it? 

We have materials on these individuals, or we have had I 
19 access to them, and we have since asked for production of those J 

20 documents. Have \'Te gotten everything on those individuals? 

21 Mr. Shackelford. I wouldn't have any idea. I don't 

22 p~epare the material. 
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25 

~x. Atkisson. I would assume that would be the understand 

ing, if we asked for material on the individual, we would get 

everything. 
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Mr. Shackelford. I presume so. You g~t what you asked 

Mr. Atkisson. We asked for everything. 

Mr. Wannall. To the best 

r·~r:. 
Departmentt

1 
transmittal to 

of our ability, we will send to 

you =en: everything • 

Mr. Atkisson. Can you .give me any idea v1ith respect to 

your knowledge of the SWP individuals'listed there, or any SWP 

people that you know of, what, in ~ddition to active member-

ship in SWP, qualified some of those individuals.-- and some 

of them listed there are on the ADEX list -- what, in addition 

to active membership, would qualify those people for being 

listed on ADEX? 

Mr. Wannall. We would be glad to furnish to you, if you 

would like, the criteria as it existed in connection with the 

security index when membership was one of the bases for putting 

them on. 

· Mr. Atkisson. I am talking about ADEX now. I understand 

the distinction and some of those people are or were on ADEX. 

I would just like to know what it is in addition to 

active membership that got them there. 

Mr. Nannall. We will give you the criteria with which we 

started our survey of ADEX and the cri.teria now is include 

only those individuals who pos·e a realistic direct and current 

danger to the national security. The various categories are 

no longer utilized. It would have to be in the nature of a 
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. 1 willingness and capability and acti·on. Willingness. and capa­
l 

2 bility to engage in these things. 

Mr. Atkisson. Let me ask you this: . If somebody is 

4 active in the SWP and consequently falls under the watchful 

5 eye of the Bureau and then that person leayes the SWP, is 

s··, there any way -- what would a person ha"~:e to do to convince 

7 ~he Bureau that he or she was no longer pursuing the terrorist 

8 policies and objectives of the SWP? 

9 Mr. Wanna11. Your choice of words "convince us"; he 

10 doesn't have to do anything to convince us. We are interested 

11 in activities of individualso If the activities cease, we 

12 have no further interest in the person. The. "convince" is 

1~ what hangs me up a bit. · 

14 We are trying to conduct our investigations based on 

15 a threat that is represented by a person's activities •. 

16 Mr. Atkisson. I would point out to you for your review 

17 and it is . a question I think we would like an answer to later-

18 that Norma Jean Ladiko vociferously and visibly withdrew from 

19 SWP long before she was t~ken off the list. 

20 Mr. Wannall. Can you tell me the time frame? 

21 Mr. Atkisson. I don't know the specific dates. She 

- 22 wii:hdre'>v in 1971, a long time ago. An·d· a review of the 

23 documents that the Bureau has supplied to us show no activities 

24 whatsoever, even participation in any SWP activities or related 

25 activities. 
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1 Mr. Wannall. And you are .sure she is on-the ADEX. 

2 Mr. Atkisson. According to the documents in the file. 

3 Mr. Wannall. She is currently on the ADEX? 

4 Mr. Atkisson. No; I think just about everybody there 

S was recommended for being dropped from ADEX at some point.~ 

6: Ms. Miller. Not everyone. Mr. Zimmerman is still . on. 

7 Mr. Atkisson. I do recall in reviewing the Mark Rich 

8 file tha·;_ there \'las a specific m~mo recommending that he no 

9 longer be a candidate for ADEX, and I think it was in 1973. 

10 Mr. Wannall ~ You understand, September, 1971, up until 
!£';~ 

11 October, 1972, when we had this 17'0·.0.5"" figure, we had four 

1.2 standards for reviewing files and at t~at time persons were put 

13 under four categories. I don't know the precise date-- I 

14 think it was probably in January of 1973, or perhaps before 

15 that -- we said, "Okay, we will look at everybody v1e haven't 

; 6 taken a look at for some time. Nmv whittle it down." 

17 She probably was dropped during the course of that. 

18 Mr. Atkisson. I do recall that Mark Rich was dropped from 

19 ADEX after the SWP filed its lawsuit, if that gives you any 

20 time frame. 

21 Mr. Wannall. Well, if you would like to request it, there 

22 are channels set· up for requests. If you will submit a request 

23 to us as to ~he precise criteria we used after September 1, 

24 September, 1971, and ,.,~en we established the new criteria. 

25 Mr. Oliphant. We have. asked for a listing of all persons --
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1 this is not only our request; these are the requests specifi-

2 cally asked for by Congressman McClory, a listing of all per-

3 son~ who have been on the ADE~ list since its inception, a 

4 copy of the current ADEX -list. I don't believe that has been 

5 provided. '\ 

6 ,. Mr. Vermeire. We have had access to the ADEX list. 

7 Mr. Shackelford. You were given access to a current 

8 list, as I recall, and I think the discussion went on that we 

9 cannot retrieve a list as of a given date, if ·I am not mis-

10 taken. 

Mr. Vermeire. I understand, but we haven't had a current 

12 list delivered to the Committee. I thought that was in the 

1.3 process. 

14 Mr. Oliphant. We made a request. 

15 Mr. Shackelford. You made a request; whether it was 

16 deliv~red, I don't know. 

17 Mr. Ryan. It seems to me there would be a privacy con-

18 sideration. 

19 ·Mr. V ei:meire. That had been arranged. ·Paul Daley 

20 told us that had been approved. 

21 Mr. Wannall. You are getting into areas where this has to 

22 be negotiated in the Department "t-li th our legal counsel. If 

23 Paul said this was app~oved, it is on its way. 

24 Mr. Vermeire. Mr. Wannal~ how many arrepts have there 

25 been in the last fifteen years, from sixty to seventy-five 

espionaqe or sabotaq~? 
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t Mr. Wannall. I would have to research that.· I recall 

Z two arrests made within the last six months. I recall an 

3 arrest -- foreign n?-tions, did you specify spec:i,.f.ically? 

4 Mr. Ver.meire. Yes. 

5 Mr. Wannall. Very few. The last one I recall, as a mat-

6 : ter of fact-- and there may have been a more recent one 
• 

7 was the Ivanoff case. When you are talking about foreign 

8 nations, you are talking about our targets who had diplomatic 

9 immunities. . They are not subject to arrest. 

10 Mr. Vermeire. Not all of them have diplomatic i~~unity. 

11 Mr. Wannall. Many of them. 

12 Mr. Vermeire. Only a high-ranking one, I would think. 

13 Mr. Wannall. No; everybody except those connected with 

14 the United Nations Secretariat. The only ones in the United 

15 States in an of~icial capacity without diplomatic immunity are 

16 those connected with U.N. Secretariat. Every member of a 

. . • 
17 U.N. Mission, consulate --

18 Mr. Vermeire. What about domestics? How many domestics 

19 have been arrested for espionage or sabotage? 

20 Mr. Wannall. This is what I started to answer before. I 

21 recall two last summer. I recall one in the Summer of 1973, an 

22 beyond that, I would have to go to records to give you·a pre-

23 
cise answer. 

24 
Mr. Vermeire. Could you check those records out between 

25 
now and November 18? 
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'· 1 Mr. Ryan. I might add during that period there were a 

2 number of hostile representatives of foreign countries who . 

3 were declared persona non grata; in other words; asked to-
.· 

4 leave the country. 

5 Mr. Vermeire. They lost their visa, from State? 

6 Mr. Wannall~ This is something you would have to go to 

•7 the State Department on. There have been numerous cases I 

8 say numerous, it is a relative term -- where an official ')f a 

9 foreign government has been determined to have been engaged 

10 in activities of an espionage nature and rather than a public 

11 declaration of persona non grata action, the State Department 

12 would be in touch with the Soviets and, say, •ivle will do our 

1.3 best to keep this off the public record because you pave one 

14 of our people over there and you do the same thing with him." 

15 There are neg·otiations of this type • 

16 Even trying to compile for you something that was us~ble 

17' in a public forum, of PNG actions or requests that the 

18 person be removed from the country or that he leave the country 

19 in a certain length of time -- there have been instances of 

. 20 this sort . 

-
21 But we are bound quite closely by State Department 

22 considerations of their relationships with the particular 

23 foreign country involved. It all has to do \·lith the period of 

24 detente and foreign relations. 

25 
Mr. Vermeire. Mr. Wannall ,_I just have one more question. 
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1 we/understand that the security index has been des~royed. 

2 There is no way to retrieve it. There is no way .'to put it 

3 together in any way, to get an idea of the 13,000 or 15,000 or 

4 so names that were on it. 
r 

5 !h~t presents obvious problems. There is no way histo~i- { 

~-Q • cally now for us to go back and see, asiqe from whether the 

'7 list, itself -- the idea of that kind of list was wrong. 

8 Assuming it was right, there is no way to see whether the 

9 names on there were the kind of names you wanted subjected to 

10 this kind of condition in case of national emergency. 

11 My question is that I was always under the impression · 

' 
12 that under the retention plan that documents that might have 

13 historical value or sometime in the future there may be some 
. 

14 . question as to that material, that that kind of material would 

15 be retained somewhere in an archival situation. 

16 There· obviously is now no way to go back, according to 

·17 the Bureau, to retrieve that kind of information. I can 

18 understand why a list 6f.that type, if those conditions 

. 19 applied, should a national emergency arise, why that list and 

20 the conditions attached to it should be destroyed, but the 

21 list, itself, the list of the pure names, it seems to me 

22- should have had some kind of retention just in case the situa-

23 tion ever did come up, as it has come up now, of a committee 

24 or anyone else checking into the list. 

25 
Do you know any kind of decision that went into 
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1 destroyi'ng this list? 

z Mr. Wannall. I don't know the decision, but.I can tell you 

3 what the procedures are, which might explain it. 

• 
The type of information which the Bureau must retain 

5 because of its possible or aci::'lal historical value is clearly 

6 -: defined by the Archi-.:Jist of the United States, and rules were 

7 .laid down as to what should be retained and what should be 

8 destroyed. 

9 The list was an administratLve device to.use in the event 

10 of an emergency. At headquarters, when a person was removed 

11 from the list, it was a card that was kept in a cabinet. 

12 That card was placed in a _separate file drawer and retained 

13 for three years. 

14 
We have a relocation site from which we would operate in 

15 
the event of an emergency. 

16-
Mr. Vermeire. Is that in Quantico? 

.17 
Mr. Ryan. I think that is classified • 

18 
Mr. Wannall. Here it is Quantico. On the record, we 

19 
don't respond to that if we should get into a.public session. 

20 
At Quantico, we would have to operate with whatever was 

21 
there. There "t.vere times when people felt that Washington 

22 
would be ~.ne of the principal targets of the first atomic 

. 2.3 
bomb if there should be a war_, so there was at Quantico a 

2.4 
duplication· of this list,· and it was retained for five years. 

2.5 
When, I guess it ·was Senator Mansfield indicated no 
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1 
I 

agrncy should destroy records, we ce~sed destroying cards on a 

2 three-year basis here and on a five-year basis at· Quantico, · 

3 but the list, itself, was run off the middle o~.each month. 

4 A copy of that list went to Quantico until it was replaced, 

5 so it would be there if during the ensuing month~ we would have 

6": to relocate. 

7 Once a new list was prepared, there was no reason to 

8 retain the old list because during the intervening days 

9 names would have been added, names would have been deleted, 

10 and we would certainly have no interests in continuing inves-

11 tigations from our relocation site of persons whose names had 

12 been deleted from the list; 

13 So it had, in the opinion of the Archivist, no historical 

14 value. I say 11 it had". I am telling what the procedures were 1 

15. and I assume the determination was made. 

16 Mr. Vermeire. Wasn't it on any kind of computer or print-

17 out of this material that could have been easily stored? 

18 Mr. Wannall. The names, when a computer capability was 

19 developed, were put on the computer, and that was the printout. 

20 That was ~he monthly list t~e 15th of each month. 

21 

22 

23 

Mr. Vermeire. I am not an expert of computers, but isn't 

there a way .you can reconstruct a computer entry? 

Mr. Wannall. I am not, either. But I think it depends I 
24 on a particular reel you have at a time, and if you have 

25 
transferred to a new reel and added to it, the information has j 
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1 to be added and deleted from it, and.the ree~ is wiped out. 

2 I do know that there is no way of reconstructing it throug 

3 our computers, becau~e we made very searching inquiries. 

4 We have a drawer, and I think you have had-access to it, 

5 of thes·~ old cards that were retained for thre:e to five years. 

Mr. Verrneire. The problem with the old cards -- and I 

7 have been through this vlith your people is that there is no 

8 indication that those old cards -- most of those old cards I 

9 believe are from the third stage, is it? As I understand it, 

10 those cards -- there were three stages; right? 

11 Mr. Wannall. There were three categories. 

12 Mr. Verrneire1 As far as the security index was concerned, 

_13 there were three stages or categories, one and two being the 

. 
14 most serious. I understand those cards only deal with the 

15 third category. 

16 Mr. Wannall. I am not aware of that. That is quite pos-

sible. 

18 Mr. Vermeire. Cduld you just check 

19 Mr. Shackelford. I don't think so. There is no 

20 .procedure differen~iating between categories-- I don't think 

21 that is right. I think what you are running into is a nurnerica 

22 probability, because, as the categories get more restrictive, 

23 
numerically there are less people. So if you were to flip 

through the cards, you would see more in Category 3 than in 

25 
Category 2 than in Category 1. Category 1 would undoubtedly 
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1 be few in number relative to all the others. 

Mr. Vermeire~ In essence, would all those cards contain 

· 3 people that were on the security index at smne time, not any 

4 one time, but at some time? 
r 

Mr. Shackelford. No; only up to the retention period. < 

Mr. Wannall. I think it was in January, this year, \ve were 
• 

7 told not to destroy any more records, so I would say at head-

8 quarters we probably, as opposed t? having three years of 

9 records, we have four. 

10 Mr. Atkisson. Was the content of the list ever transmitte 

1 t to military intelligence? 

12 Mr. Wannall. No. 

13 Mr. Vermeirea Would those cards you have -- I think they 

14 are orange cards. Would those cards you have give us a fair 

15 
sampling of the kinds of people who are on the security index? 

16 Mr. Wannall. You mean over the entire lifetime of the 

17 security index? Because criteria did change from time to 

18 
time. 

19 
Mr. Vermeire. That would be just the most recent 

20 
names, then? 

21 
Mr. Wannall. They would be ones that have been removed 

22 
within the·past four years, I would say. 

23 
Mr. Shackelford. Right. Anyone in the card file you 

24 
are referring to would be those taken off that 'i.vould fall into 

25 
the three to five-year category and the retention at the 
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1 instruction of Sena.tor Mansfield, where we ceased to destroy. 
I 

2. That is all you would have.. . 

3 Mr. Verrneire. These were people taken off. the security 

index? .· 

5 Mr. Shackelforda Yes ·. 

Mr. Vermeire. The people on it remained on it until the 

7 termination would not be in the card catalog? 

8 Mr. Shackelford. Yes, because ultimately they would be 

9 taken off. 

10 Mr. Vermeire. Ultimately, you mean the list was 

11 destroyed? 

12 Mr. Shackelford~ We are talking about two different 

. 13 
things. When the security index ceased to function, there was 

14 reevaluation,as Ray said, for inclusion on the ADEX: Those 

15 
who were taken off the S."I. would go into that drawer. 

It would be a very difficult thing to reconstruct because on a 

"17 
given card, if you could establish a different period on the 

18 
S.I. from the card --you can't. You would have to also look 

19 
at the manual for that period, too. 

20 
Mr~ Vermeire. Looking at it from this point of view, if 

21 
I found a person's name on one of those cards, that person at 

22 
one time would have been on the security index? 

23 
Mr. Wannall. Would have been on the ADEX. The security 

2.4 
index was discontinued Se-ptember, 1971. 

25 
Mr. Shackelford. Only security index persons would be 
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in/the dead file, if you will~ 

Mr. Vermeire. That is what I mean. 

Mr •. Shackelford.. I mean ADEX, because of" the time lapse, 

see. 

Vermeire. Would you check into that? It -i-s my under-

standing now -- and I think you would agree -- that security 

index in no way can be retrieved; is that correct? 

Mr. ·Shackelford. · I knovl that is correct. It cannot be. 

Mr. Oliphant. I just have one question, maybe semantics. 

When we started this session, Mr. Wannanstated that to 

his knowledge there were no Congressmen that had been the sub-

ject of electronic surveillance or, let's say, even figured 

in walk-ins on electronic surveillance in the national security 

field. Is that correct? 
.. 

Mr. wannall. What do you mean by walk-ins? 

Mr. Oliphant. Someone that came on one. In other 

words, you have a tap on or electronic surveillance on X and 

Y inadvertently speaks with X. 

Mr. Wannall. I didn't say that. You were talking there 

!-\­
about microphones. When you say electronic surveillanceAmeans 

wiretaps, also. 

Mr. Oliphant. All right; then let me ask you this ques-

tion: To your knowledge have there been any Congressmen who 

have been picked up on any electronic surveillance conducted 

_by the Bureau while they were Congressmen? 
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Mr. Wannall. Yes. 

Mr. Oliphant. And do you know how many? 

Mr. Wannall. No. 

172 

Mr. Oliphant. Do you know when the most recent time was? 

Mr. Wannall. I would imagine there is a possibility it 

6 ; is -going on today. We do have electronic surveillances in our 

7 foreign counter-intelligence field. If you visualize a particu-

8 lar establishment, and if a Senat~r or Congressman should make 

9 a call to that establishment, he woul0 commit what you call a 

10 walk-in. 

11 

1.2 

14 

15 " 

16 

17 

18 
.· 

19 

.20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Mr. Oliphant. All right. Have there been any Congressmen 

1.vho have been, while they were Congres SJUen :. the subject of a·n 

electronic surveillance by the FBI? 

Mr. Wannall. I am qualifYing in the national security fieldJ 

I do not know whether there have been any Congressmen subject 

to electronic surveillance under Title 3, because they were 

being investigated under some criminal statute. 

Now, in the national security field, I have no information 

or knowledge that a Congressman, either at his house or at his 

office, has been the subject of a wiretap • 

I have information to the effect that on one occasion when 

we were conducting a microphone surveiLlance in a hotel room in 

New York, there was an overhearing of a Congressman. 

Mr. Oliphant. And this was what you referred to previously 

Mr. Wannall. Yes. 
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1 Mr. Vermeire. In that case, the microphone was placed in 
.. 

2 the hotel room of a foreign national?_ 

3._· Mr. Wannall. There were two individuals in the hotel. I 
' 

4 think they may have been in the same room; they may·have been 

,. 5 in different rooms, but it was in the room occupied by one of { 

6.- those two individuals. 

7 I described them as foreign nationals. I think I am 

8 correct. They were officials of a foreign government, to the· 

9 best of my recollection. 

10 Mr. Oliphant. In that case, Congressman Cooley walked 

11 into the room and was overheard? 

12 Mr. Wannall. Congressman Cooley was overheard on the 

13 wiretap in that room. 

14 Mr. Oliphant. I thought you said microphone. · 

15 Mr. Wannall. I mean microphone. 

16 Mr. Oliphant. Was it anticipated he would be overheard? 

17 Mr. Wannall. There was indication that "a friend" would be 

18 visi~ing those individuals, and the way I recall it, it was 

19 anticipated it would be Congressman Cooley. 

20 Mr. Oliphant. When was this? 

21 Mr. Wa~nall. Well, let's see, it was during the time that 

22 Mr. Kennedy was Attorney General, so I·would put it in the earl 

23 sixties, probably not later than 1963. 

24 Mr. Vermeire. Was the anticipation that Congressman 

25 Cooley was going to be in the room: was it that anticipation 
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1 which led . to the microphone being placed in t~e room, or was it 

z there already and the anticipation arose after the microphone 

3 was placed? 

4 Mr. w~~nall. I think it was the anticipation he would be 

5 there. 

6 ' Mr. Ver.meire. Led to the ~icrophone being placed in the 

7 room? 

8 Mr. Wannall. Yes. 

9 Mr .. Vermeire. So, in essence, he was the target? 

10 Mr. Wannall. In essence, he was a target. 

11 Mr. Oliphant. Are there any warrantless electronic sur-

12 veillances taking place pre.sently with regard to any domestic 

13 organization? 

14 Mr. V.7annall. No. 

15 
Mr. Vermeire. Are there any such arrangements similar to 

16 
the one involving Congressman Cooley, where it is anticipated 

17 
that a Congressman will be in a certain spot at a certain time 

18 
and the electronic surveillance is made with that.anticipation 

19 
although it is ostensibly directed against another party, 

20 
other than a Congressman? 

21 
Mr. Wannall. No, and I will clarify the situation with 

22 
respect to -Congressman Cooley. We were conducting an investig~ 

23 
tion at the request of the Attorney General. It had to do 

24 
with sugar lobbying in the United States, and the Attorney 

25 
General requested an investigation to determine, as I recall, i 
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• the,re weJ;"e undue pressures being placed upon . the President in 
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I 
I 

2. parceling OUt sugar quotas to the variO~lS sugar-producing 

3 countries, and it was the individuals from the sugar-producing· 

4 countries who were occupying the ~ooms in the hotel in New 

5 York and the investigation did show contacts between those 
c 

6 individuals and Congressman Cooley, who, as I recall at the 

\ 

7 time, was heading a committee that related to sugar matters, 

8 the Agriculture committee, as I recall, or a subcommittee 

9 dealing with agriculture matters.· 

10 It was an investigation that was undertaken at the specifi 

11 request of the Attorney General, and I don't know if the 

1.2 request originated higher or not. I don't know that. 

13 

14 .. 
15 

16 

17 

18 

·19 

20 
•h 
'S 21 
'.rn. 

22 . 
I 

23 I 
24 l 
25 
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'\ • 1 Mr. Vermeire. When Mr. Hoover was told there 

35 
2 was no electronic surveillance going .on of any Congressman 

3· that technically might have been correct. But do you think 

4 in substance it was not a full picture of what was happening? 

5 Technically it was not his.room, but substantially he 

6: was the person targeted. 

7 Mr. Wannall. Mr. Hoover was replying to charges that 

·a Members of_Congress were being wiretapped. When I learned 

9 Mr. Hoover was going to make a statement that no Congressman 

10 had ever been subject to an electronic surveillance, which 

11 is broader than a wiretap, I called that to the attention 

12. of the Assistant Director. 

.13 Mr. Vermeire. We were under the impression from that 

14 Assistant Direcfor that for some reason you had informed 

15 Mr. Hoover of the situation, that there were no electronic 

16 surveillances going on and that you went to Mr. Sullivan 

:17 after that, realizing that perhaps this was not entirely 

18 accurate and you stated to Mr. Sullivan that you were 

19 concerned that Mr. Hoover would go on the record and say 

2.0 there \vere not electronic surveillances when in fact there 

21 was this m~crophonic surveillance involving Congressman 

22 ·coole~. What you tell us today is quite different from 

23 the interpretation given to us from Mr. Sullivan. 

2.4 Mr. Wannall. As I understand your interpretation, 

2.5 
it is entirely different. 
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1 In fact, ~ nearly 25 years work, directly at headquarters, 

2:·. I would say I talked with him,. on the . telephone while he 
fi 

3 was in the office not over a half dozen times. I was 
·-.:v-e~ e 

a section chief. Over .me was a branch chief and then 4 
..ve t- '-' •W {l~.w:f~ .d· -f~> ·lw~ VIF?~-; ~ · ··: 'f' '!'\) 

an assistant director and over him wa'S> an ,%ssocia tl:on 9irector 5 

to Mr. Hoover. I would not have thought of going to Mr. Hoover 

7 on a matter of this type .- I called it to Mr. s ·ullivan' s 

8 attention. 

9 Mr. Ryan. I have worked directly under Mr. Wannall 

10 for 13 years and he would be the last person I would ever 

11 expect in. the FBI to engage in any kind of a coverup. 

12 If this implication has been put forth, it is a great 

"13 injustice to him. ... 

14 Mr. Vermeire. This certainly did not originate 

15 with us. In fact, out of deference to him, I was not playing 

16 games. I came out and told you what the story is. 

-17 
Mr. Wannall. I appreciate that. I want my story on the 

18 
record. I'm telling you what the facts are. 

19 Mr. Vermeire. I have no further questions. 

20 
Thank you. 

21 
(Whereupon, at 6:40 o'clock p.m., the interview 

22 
was concluded.) 

23 

24 
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